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Audit.Tax.Consulting.Financial Advisory.
Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholder of

Woori Bank
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Woori Bank (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholder’s equity and cash flows for the years then ended, all expressed in Korean won.  These financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of Korea.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Bank as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations, the appropriations of its retained earnings and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with financial accounting standards generally accepted in the Republic of Korea. 

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the following:

As discussed in Note 29 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, as of December 31, 2004, the amount owed by LG Card Co., Ltd. and its related special purpose companies (collectively “LG Card”) to the Bank totaled ￦145 billion in loans and in relation to this, the Bank provided ￦28 billion in allowances for possible loan losses.  In addition, as of December 31, 2004, the Bank has ￦211 billion in equity securities and ￦77 billion (acquisition cost) in debt securities, beneficiary certificates and asset-backed securities backed by credit card receivables of LG Card that had been securitized, all of which were classified as available-for-sale, and recognized ￦14 billion of cumulative impairment loss on such available-for-sale securities.  As of December 31, 2004, the Bank recorded other allowance amounting to ￦10 billion for the commitment to invest ￦31 billion of equity in LG Card and the Bank has agreed to extend maturities on commercial papers of ￦70 billion issued by LG Card in the Bank’s non-performance-based trust accounts, and the Bank has adjusted the trust management fee income reflecting the related estimated losses of ￦15 billion in 2004. Depending on the result of restructuring process on LG Card, actual losses from credits to LG Card may differ materially from management’s current assessment.

As discussed in Note 33 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, on February 5, 2004, the Bank and Woori Credit Card (“Woori Card”), a subsidiary of Woori Financial Holding Co., Ltd. (“WFH”), entered into a merger contract that was approved in the shareholder’s meeting on March 4, 2004. Pursuant to the merger contract, on March 31, 2004, all assets (￦2,142 billion) and all liabilities (￦2,009 billion) of Woori Card were transferred to and assumed by the Bank and the difference between the net assets transferred and the consideration paid was recorded in capital surplus (￦330 billion). The Bank issued 0.3581 new common stock per one common stock of Woori Card.  As a result of this merger transaction, total number of common shares and total common stock of the Bank increased from 571 million shares to 636 million shares, and from ￦2,853 billion to ￦3,180 billion, respectively. 

Accounting principles and auditing standards and their applications in practice vary among countries. The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in countries other than the Republic of Korea.  In addition, the procedures and practices utilized in the Republic of Korea to audit such financial statements may differ from those generally accepted and applied in other countries.  Accordingly, this report and the accompanying financial statements are for use by those knowledgeable about Korean accounting procedures and auditing standards and their application in practice. 

February 25, 2005
Notice to Readers
This report is effective as of February 25, 2005, the auditors’ report date. Certain subsequent events or circumstances may have occurred between the auditors’ report date and the time the auditors’ report is read. Such events or circumstances could significantly affect the accompanying financial statements and may result in modifications to the auditors’ report.

WOORI BANK

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003

	
	
	Korean Won

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	
	
	
	
	(restated)

	ASSETS
	
	(In millions)

	
	
	
	
	

	Cash and due from banks (Notes 3, 10, 22, 23, 24, 30 and 31)
	
	￦
3,763,789
	
	￦
4,894,145

	Trading securities (Notes 4, 23 and 31)
	
	4,666,740
	
	2,208,845

	Available-for-sale securities (Notes 4, 10, 23 and 31)
	
	10,640,396
	
	11,932,915

	Held-to-maturity securities (Notes 4, 10, 22, 23 and 31)
	
	4,479,187
	
	5,992,755

	Equity securities accounted for using the equity method of accounting (Note 4)
	
	87,005
	
	95,544

	Loans, net of allowance for possible loan losses 


(Notes 5, 6, 22, 23, 24, 25, 29 and 31)
	
	77,450,823
	
	72,790,974

	Fixed assets (Notes 7, 9 and 23)
	
	1,800,334
	
	1,756,646

	Other assets (Notes 8, 20, 23, 24 and 26)
	
	5,621,471 
	
	5,661,504

	
	
	￦
108,509,745
	
	￦
105,333,328

	
	
	
	
	

	LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	LIABILITIES:
	
	
	
	

	Deposits (Notes 11, 22, 23, 24 and 31)
	
	￦
73,977,556
	
	￦
74,163,445

	Borrowings (Notes 12, 22, 23, 24 and 31)
	
	9,417,318
	
	
9,589,517

	Debentures, net of discounts (Notes 13, 22, 23 and 31)
	
	10,741,551
	
	
7,780,156

	Other liabilities (Notes 15, 23, 24, 25 and 26)
	
	6,762,240
	
	
8,129,624

	
	
	100,898,665
	
	
99,662,742

	
	
	
	
	

	SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY 
(Notes 16, 26 and 34):
	
	
	
	

	Common stock
	
	
3,179,783
	
	
2,852,838

	Capital surplus
	
	
465,786
	
	
655,813

	Retained earnings before appropriations

(Net income of ￦1,996,043 million in 2004 and ￦1,332,185 million in 2003)
	
	
3,151,094
	
	
1,797,998

	Capital adjustments
	
	
791,004
	
	
350,394

	Minority interests
	
	
23,413
	
	
13,543

	
	
	
7,611,080
	
	
5,670,586

	
	
	￦
108,509,745
	
	￦
105,333,328

	
	
	
	
	


See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

WOORI BANK

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003

	
	
	Korean Won

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	
	
	
	
	(restated)

	
	
	(In millions, except for income per common share data)

	OPERATING INCOME
	
	
	
	

	INTEREST INCOME (Note 24):
	
	
	
	

	Interest on due from banks
	
	￦
2,502
	
	￦
7,743

	Interest on trading securities
	
	117,163
	
	123,622

	Interest on available-for-sale securities
	
	495,095
	
	704,471

	Interest on held-to-maturity securities
	
	431,705
	
	564,267

	Interest on loans
	
	4,636,302
	
	4,330,394

	Other
	
	62,782
	
	53,407

	
	
	5,745,549
	
	5,783,904

	
	
	
	
	

	OTHER OPERATING INCOME (Notes 24 and 26):
	
	
	
	

	Guarantee fees and commissions
	
	993,105
	
	621,401

	Foreign exchange trading income
	
	1,568,838
	
	438,727

	Gain on derivatives trading
	
	3,010,681
	
	759,746

	Trust management fees
	
	34,067
	
	43,067

	Gain on disposal of trading securities
	
	52,847
	
	62,639

	Gain on valuation of trading securities
	
	17,207
	
	43,928

	Income from private beneficiary certificates
	
	88,870
	
	-

	Reversal of allowance for acceptance and guarantee losses
	
	27,200
	
	18,065

	Other
	
	12,289
	
	59,696

	
	
	5,805,104
	
	2,047,269

	
	
	11,550,653
	
	7,831,173

	
	
	
	
	

	OPERATING EXPENSES
	
	
	
	

	INTEREST EXPENSE 
(Note 24):
	
	
	
	

	Interest on deposits
	
	(2,110,740)
	
	(2,218,763)

	Interest on borrowings
	
	(215,369)
	
	(229,977)

	Interest on debentures
	
	(504,745)
	
	(344,823)

	Other
	
	(59,485)
	
	(84,887)

	
	
	(2,890,339)
	
	(2,878,450)

	
	
	
	
	

	OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 24 and 26):
	
	
	
	

	Commissions
	
	(133,091)
	
	(71,289)

	Provision for possible loan losses
	
	(675,793)
	
	(527,878)

	Salaries, employee benefits and provision for severance benefits
	
	(938,617)
	
	(831,348)

	Depreciation and amortization
	
	(95,790)
	
	(72,586)

	Foreign exchange trading losses
	
	(1,444,487)
	
	(221,668)

	Loss on derivatives trading
	
	(2,972,269)
	
	(835,117)

	Loss on disposal of trading securities
	
	(38,463)
	
	(32,164)

	Loss on valuation of trading securities
	
	(5,259)
	
	(39,823)

	Provision for acceptance and guarantee losses
	
	-
	
	(6500)

	Taxes and dues
	
	(88,734)
	
	(78,716)

	Other (Notes 17, 27 and 28)
	
	(792,936)
	
	(701,609)

	
	
	(7,185,439)
	
	(3,418,698)

	
	
	(10,075,778)
	
	(6,297,148)

	
	
	
	
	


(continued)

WOORI BANK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003
	
	
	Korean Won

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	
	
	
	
	(restated)

	
	
	(In millions, except for income per common share data)

	
	
	
	
	

	OPERATING INCOME
	
	￦
1,474,875
	
	￦
1,534,025

	
	
	
	
	

	NON-OPERATING INCOME (Notes 18 and 24)
	
	373,057
	
	473,190

	
	
	
	
	

	NON-OPERATING EXPENSES (Notes 18, 19 and 24)
	
	(244,643)
	
	(567,414)

	
	
	
	
	

	INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX BENEFITS (EXPENSE)
	
	1,603,289
	
	1,439,801

	
	
	
	
	

	INCOME TAX BENEFITS (EXPENSE) (Note 20)
	
	393,257
	
	(105,447)

	
	
	
	
	

	MINORITY INTEREST, GAIN
	
	(503)
	
	(2,169)

	
	
	
	
	

	INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST
	
	1,996,546
	
	1,334,354

	
	
	
	
	

	NET INCOME
	
	￦
1,996,043
	
	￦
1,332,185

	
	
	
	
	

	ORDINARY INCOME PER SHARE 
(in Korean won) 

(Notes 2 and 21)
	
	￦
3,221
	
	￦
2,378

	
	
	
	
	

	NET INCOME PER SHARE (In Korean won)


(Notes 2 and 21)
	
	￦
3,221
	
	￦
2,378

	
	
	
	
	


See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

WOORI BANK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003

	
	
	Capital

stock
	
	Capital

surplus
	
	Retained

earnings
	
	Capital

adjustments
	
	Minority

interests
	
	Total

	
	
	(In millions)

	January 1, 2003
	
	￦
2,764,400
	
	￦
517,075
	
	￦
983,255
	
	￦
16,240
	
	￦
12,226
	
	￦
4,293,196

	Dividends
	
	-
	
	-
	
	
(138,220)
	
	
-
	
	-
	
	
(138,220)

	Amortization of discount on stock issuance
	
	-
	
	-
	
	
(777)
	
	
777
	
	-
	
	
-

	Interim dividends
	
	-
	
	-
	
	
(380,381)
	
	
-
	
	-
	
	
(380,381)

	Net income
	
	-
	
	-
	
	
1,332,185
	
	
-
	
	-
	
	
1,332,185

	Gain on valuation of available-for-sale securities
	
	-
	
	-
	
	
-
	
	
328,634
	
	-
	
	
328,634

	Gain on valuation of equity securities accounted for using the equity method
	
	-
	
	-
	
	
-
	
	
4,799
	
	-
	
	
4,799

	Increase from merger
	
	88,438
	
	138,682
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	-
	
	
227,120

	Changes in capital adjustment of subsidiaries
	
	-
	
	-
	
	
-
	
	
(19)
	
	-
	
	
(19)

	Gain on valuation using the equity method of accounting
	
	-
	
	-
	
	
(235)
	
	
-
	
	-
	
	
(235)

	Changes in minority interest
	
	-
	
	-
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
1,317
	
	
1,317

	Other
	
	-
	
	56
	
	
2,171
	
	
(37)
	
	-

	
	
2,190

	December 31, 2003
	
	￦
2,852,838
	
	￦
655,813
	
	￦
1,797,998
	
	￦
350,394
	
	￦
13,543
	
	￦
5,670,586


	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	January 1, 2004
	
	￦
2,852,838
	
	￦
655,813
	
	￦
1,797,998
	
	￦
350,394
	
	￦
13,543
	
	￦
5,670,586


	Dividends
	
	-
	
	
-
	
	
(239,638)
	
	
-
	
	-
	
	
(239,638)

	Interim dividends
	
	-
	
	
-
	
	
(400,017)
	
	
-
	
	-
	
	
(400,017)

	Net income
	
	-
	
	
-
	
	
1,996,043
	
	
-
	
	-
	
	
1,996,043

	Gain on valuation of available-for-sale securities
	
	-
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
446,395
	
	-
	
	
446,395

	Gain on valuation of equity securities accounted for using the equity method
	
	-
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
(5,115)
	
	-
	
	
(5,115)

	Loss on valuation of derivatives instruments for cash flow hedge
	
	-
	
	-
	
	
	
	(746)
	
	
	
	
(746)

	Increase (decrease) from merger
	
	326,945
	
	
(191,705)
	
	
-
	
	97
	
	-
	
	
135,337

	Changes in scope of equity securities accounted for using the equity method
	
	-
	
	-
	
	(1,677)
	
	
-
	
	-
	
	
(1,677)

	Changes in capital adjustment of subsidiaries
	
	-
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
(21)
	
	-
	
	
(21)

	Changes in scope of consolidation
	
	-
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	20,163
	
	
20,163

	Changes in minority interest
	
	-
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
(10,293)
	
	
(10,293)

	Other
	
	-
	
	
1,678

	
	
(1,615)
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
63

	December 31, 2004
	
	￦
3,179,783
	
	￦
465,786
	
	￦
3,151,094
	
	￦
791,004
	
	￦
23,413
	
	￦
7,611,080



See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
WOORI BANK

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003
	
	
	Korean Won

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	
	
	
	
	(restated)

	
	
	(In millions)

	CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
	
	
	
	

	Net income 
	
	￦
1,996,043
	
	￦
1,332,185

	
	
	
	
	

	Addition of expenses not involving cash outflows:
	
	
	
	

	Loss on disposal of trading securities
	
	38,463
	
	32,164

	Loss on valuation of trading securities
	
	5,259
	
	39,763

	Provision for possible loan losses
	
	675,793
	
	527,878

	Loss on derivatives trading
	
	2,972,269
	
	835,117

	Provision for severance benefits
	
	83,041
	
	69,151

	Depreciation and amortization
	
	95,790
	
	72,586

	Loss on disposal of available-for-sale securities
	
	4,389
	
	19,910

	Impairment loss on available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities
	
	24,164
	
	221,076

	Loss on disposal of tangible assets
	
	747
	
	484

	Loss on sales of loans
	
	179,994
	
	251,729

	Minority interests, gain
	
	503
	
	2,169

	Other
	
	56,329
	
	57,975

	
	
	4,136,741
	
	2,130,002

	
	
	
	
	

	Deduction of revenues not involving cash inflows:
	
	
	
	

	Gain on disposal of trading securities
	
	52,847
	
	62,639

	Gain on valuation of trading securities
	
	17,207
	
	43,928

	Reversal of allowance for possible loss on acceptances and guarantees
	
	27,200
	
	18,065

	Gain on derivatives trading
	
	3,010,681
	
	759,746

	Gain on valuation using the equity method
	
	7,406
	
	14,241

	Gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities
	
	158,947
	
	49,722

	Reversal of impairment loss on available-for-sale securities
	
	69,185
	
	183,049

	Gain on disposal of tangible assets
	
	17,498
	
	11,259

	Gain on sales of loans
	
	33,837
	
	919

	Other
	
	77,727
	
	51,626

	
	
	3,472,535
	
	1,195,194

	
	
	
	
	


(continued)

WOORI BANK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003
	
	
	Korean Won

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	
	
	
	
	(restated)

	
	
	(In millions)

	Changes in assets and liabilities resulting from operations:
	
	
	
	

	Net decrease (increase) 
in accounts receivable – other
	
	￦
1,468,739
	
	￦
(1,795,330)

	Net decrease (increase) 
in accrued income
	
	175,498
	
	(6,670)

	Net decrease (increase) 
in prepaid expenses
	
	(7,147)
	
	2,191

	Severance benefit payments
	
	(6,136)
	
	(5,313)

	Decrease in accrued severance benefits
	
	(71,574)
	
	(49,140)

	Net increase (decrease) in accounts payable-other
	
	(1,001,547)
	
	1,678,456

	Net decrease in accrued expenses
	
	(11,167)
	
	(16,247)

	Net decrease in unearned revenues
	
	(3,963)
	
	(33,433)

	Other
	
	(368,548)
	
	65,621

	
	
	174,155
	
	(159,865)

	
	
	2,834,404
	
	2,107,128

	
	
	
	
	

	CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
	
	
	
	

	Net decrease (increase) in trading securities
	
	(2,431,563)
	
	201,179

	Net decrease (increase) in available-for-sale securities
	
	2,990,704
	
	(397,584)

	Net decrease in held-to-maturity securities
	
	1,513,568
	
	1,040,195

	Net decrease in equity securities accounted for using the equity method of accounting
	
	16,257
	
	2,651

	Net increase in loans
	
	(4,617,059)
	
	(13,835,551)

	Proceeds from sale of fixed assets
	
	87,166
	
	141,909

	Purchases of fixed assets
	
	(211,278)
	
	(162,199)

	Net decrease (increase) in other assets
	
	(1,092,392)
	
	1,192,249

	
	
	(3,744,597)
	
	(11,817,151)

	
	
	
	
	

	CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
	
	
	
	

	Net increase (decrease) in deposits
	
	(83,272)
	
	8,641,078

	Net increase in debentures
	
	1,619,746
	
	1,838,270

	Net decrease in borrowings
	
	(622,642)
	
	(409,813)

	Net increase (decrease) in other liabilities
	
	(1,143,362)
	
	394,112

	Net increase (decrease) in common stock and minority interests
	
	9,367
	
	(852)

	
	
	(220,163)
	
	10,462,795

	
	
	
	
	

	NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS
	
	(1,130,356)
	
	752,772

	
	
	
	
	

	CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

(Note 30)
	
	4,894,145
	
	4,141,373

	
	
	
	
	

	CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS, END OF YEAR (Note 30)
	
	￦
3,763,789
	
	￦
4,894,145

	
	
	
	
	


See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

WOORI BANK
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004 AND 2003

1. GENERAL
Woori Bank (“Bank”) was established in 1899 and is engaged in the commercial banking business under the Banking Law, trust business under the Trust Business Law and foreign exchange business with approval from the Bank of Korea (“BOK”) and the Ministry of Finance and Economy (“MOFE”).

On March 27, 2001, Korea Deposit Insurance Corporation (“KDIC”) established Woori Finance Holdings Co., Ltd. (“WFH”) by transferring all of the Bank’s common stock to WFH.  The Bank is 100.0 percent owned by WFH as of December 31, 2004. The Bank’s common stock amounts to ￦3,179,783 million, consisting of 636 million shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2004.  The head office of the Bank is located in Seoul, Korea. The Bank has 698 branches and offices in Korea and 12 branches in overseas.

Bank’s subsidiaries and affiliates as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 are summarized as follows (Unit: Korean won in millons and Indonesian Rupiah in millions, US dollars in thousands):
(2004)

	
	
	Capital stock
	
	Business
	
	Shares owned
	
	Percentage of ownership (%)
	
	Balance sheet date

	Consolidated:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Woori Credit Information Co., Ltd. (“WCI”) 
	
	￦
5,040
	
	Credit Information
	
	1,008,000
	
	100.0
	
	December 31

	Woori America Bank
	
	US$
42,500
	
	Banking
	
	8,500,000
	
	100.0
	
	December 31

	P.T. Bank Woori Indonesia
	
	IDR
170,000
	
	Banking
	
	1,618
	
	95.2
	
	December 31

	Woori 1st  Private Equity Fund
	
	￦
42,200
	
	Banking
	
	-
	
	52.4
	
	December 31

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Accounted for using the equity method:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	BC Card Co., Ltd.

(“BC Card”)
	
	￦
44,000
	
	Credit Card
	
	1,216,800
	
	27.7
	
	December 31

	Korea Finance Security Co., Ltd. (“KFS”)
	
	￦
7,000
	
	Security
	
	233,070
	
	16.7
	
	March 31


(2003)
	
	
	Capital stock
	
	Business
	
	Shares owned
	
	Percentage of ownership (%)
	
	Balance sheet date

	Consolidated:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	WCI
	
	￦
5,040
	
	Credit Information
	
	1,008,000
	
	100.0
	
	December 31

	Woori America Bank
	
	US$
42,500
	
	Banking
	
	8,500,000
	
	100.0
	
	December 31

	P.T. Bank Woori Indonesia
	
	IDR
170,000
	
	Banking
	
	1,387
	
	81.6
	
	December 31

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Accounted for using the equity method:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	BC Card
	
	￦
44,000
	
	Credit Card
	
	1,216,800
	
	27.7
	
	December 31

	KFS
	
	￦
7,000
	
	Security
	
	233,070
	
	16.7
	
	March 31

	Byucksan Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd. (“Byucksan”)
	
	￦
199,400
	
	Construction
	
	11,353,500
	
	29.9
	
	December 31


Trust accounts, which Woori Bank guarantees a fixed rate of return on, and/or the repayment of principal of, are included in the consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 pursuant to banking regulations promulgated by the Financial Supervisory Commission in the Republic of Korea.
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of consolidated Financial Statement Presentation

The Bank and its domestic subsidiaries maintain their official accounting records in Korean won and prepare statutory non-consolidated financial statements in the Korean language (Hangul) in conformity with financial accounting standards and banking accounting standards in the Republic of Korea.  Certain financial accounting and banking accounting standards applied by the Bank and its domestic subsidiaries that conform with those generally accepted in the Republic of Korea may not conform with generally accepted accounting principles and banking accounting practices in other countries.  Accordingly, these financial statements are intended for use by those who are informed about Korean accounting principles and practices. The accompanying financial statements have been restructured and translated into English from the Korean language financial statements.
Certain information included in Korean language consolidated financial statements, but not required for a fair presentation of the Bank and its subsidiaries’ financial position, results of operations or cash flows, is not presented in the accompanying financial statements.
The 2004 financial statements were approved by the board of directors on February 23, 2005. 

Significant accounting policies followed by Woori Bank (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries in preparing the accompanying consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Accounting for Consolidation

(1) Investment and equity account elimination and inter-company transaction elimination

Investments in subsidiaries and equity accounts of subsidiaries were eliminated at the date of the latest acquisition, which resulted in the Bank’s obtaining control of the subsidiaries. The differences between acquisition cost and net asset acquired are recorded either in goodwill or negative goodwill, which are amortized using the straight-line method over five years. If additional shares are purchased after control of the subsidiaries having been obtained, the differences between acquisition cost and net assets acquired are credited or charged to capital surplus. If the acquisition date is not the normal financial reporting date of subsidiaries, the closest normal financial reporting date to the acquisition date is regarded as the acquisition date. All significant inter-company transactions are eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

(2) Translation of financial statements for overseas subsidiaries subject to the consolidation
Financial statements of subsidiaries were translated based on the Base Rate published by Seoul Money Brokerage Services, Ltd. (“Base Rate”) at balance sheet date as follows:

	
	
	Korean Won

	Currency
	
	2004
	
	2003

	1 (US$)
	
	1,043.8
	
	
1,197.8

	100 (Indonesian Rupiah)
	
	11.20
	
	14.14


(3) Basis date of the consolidated financial statements 

Basis date of consolidated financial statements is the year-end reporting date of Woori Bank. When the year-end reporting dates of the subsidiaries are different from that of Woori Bank, consolidated financial statements are prepared with financial statements of subsidiaries prepared at the year-end reporting date of Woori Bank.

Securities

(1) Classification of securities

The Bank classifies securities on the balance sheet as trading, available-for-sale or held-to-maturity, based on their marketability, intention of acquisition and ability to hold those securities.  Specifically, the Bank classifies securities as trading securities when those securities are bought and held principally for sale in the near term to generate profits from short-term price differences and traded frequently.  Debt securities that have fixed or determinable payment amount and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity, only if the Bank has both the positive intent and ability to hold such securities to maturity.  All other securities are classified as available-for-sale.

(2) Reclassification of securities

If there is a change in the Bank’s objective and ability to hold securities, available-for-sale securities are allowed to be reclassified as held-to-maturity, and vice versa.  Whereas, if the Bank sells held-to-maturity securities, exercises a right to prepay, or reclassifies held-to-maturity securities as available-for-sale within the current year and the previous two fiscal years, all debt securities that are owned or purchased thereafter cannot be classified as held-to-maturity. On the other hand, trading securities are not reclassified as other categories of securities, and vice versa.  As an exception, however, when certain trading securities lose their marketability, that is, when those securities can no longer be traded in an active market, such securities are reclassified as available-for-sale securities.

(3) Valuation of trading securities

Trading securities are stated at acquisition cost plus incidental expenses, with acquisition cost determined using the individual moving average method. If the fair value of trading securities differs from the book value, trading securities are recorded at their fair value in the balance sheet and unrealized holding gains and losses are included in current earnings.  

(4) Valuation of available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale securities are stated at acquisition cost plus incidental expenses, with acquisition cost determined by the individual moving average method. Available-for-sale securities are accounted for at their fair value in the balance sheet.  Unrealized holding gains and losses for available-for-sale securities are accounted for as separate components of shareholder's equity until realized; that is, at the time when such securities are disposed of or written down to recognize impairment loss, the lump-sum cumulative amount of such components of shareholders' equity related to those securities is reflected in current earnings.  As an exception, however, those available-for-sale equity securities that are not traded in an active trading market are accounted for at their acquisition cost, only if their fair value cannot be reliably measured. 

When the recoverable value of available-for-sale equity securities are less than their acquisition cost (for debt securities, their amortized cost), and there is any objective evidence that the fair value is impaired, the book values are adjusted to the recoverable amounts and the amount of the acquisition cost (for debt securities, the amortized cost) in excess of the recoverable value less the amount of impairment loss already recognized in the prior periods is reflected in current loss as impairment loss of available-for-sale securities.

(5) Valuation of held-to-maturity securities

Held-to-maturity securities are stated at acquisition cost plus incidental expenses, with acquisition cost determined by the individual moving average method. Held-to-maturity securities are measured at amortized cost.  The difference between their acquisition cost and face value (commonly referred to as "discounts" or "premiums" on debt securities) is (1) amortized into interest income over the remaining terms of the securities using the effective interest method and (2) added to or subtracted from the acquisition cost.

When the recoverable amount is less than the amortized cost of a debt security, and there is any objective evidence of impairment loss, their book values are adjusted to recoverable amount.  The difference between the recoverable amounts and book values is accounted for as impairment loss of held-to-maturity securities.

(6) Equity method of accounting

Investments in equity securities of companies, over which the Bank exercises significant influence, are reported using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method of accounting, the Bank records changes in its proportionate equity of the book value of the investee as current operations, capital adjustments or adjustments to retained earnings, depending on the nature of the underlying changes in the investee.

(7) Reversal of impairment loss on available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities

The reversal of impairment loss on an available-for-sale security, when it is objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of impairment loss, is recognized as current income.  However, the reversal amount that is recognized as current income shall not exceed the amount of impairment loss previously recognized.  If the fair value of the impaired available-for-sale securities subsequently recovers, but if it is not regarded as a reversal of impairment loss, the increased amount is accounted for as a capital adjustment. 

The reversal of impairment loss of a held-to-maturity security, when it is objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of impairment loss, is recognized as current income.  However, the book value of a held-to-maturity security after such reversal shall not exceed the amortized cost of which the carrying amount of the security would be without impairment.

(8) Valuation at the time of reclassification of securities

When held-to-maturity securities are reclassified to available-for-sale, those securities are stated at the fair value on the reclassification date and the difference between the fair value and book value is recorded in capital adjustment as gains or losses on valuation of available-for-sale securities.  For available-for-sale securities reclassified to held-to-maturity, gains or losses on valuation of available-for-sale securities, which had been accumulated until the reclassification, continue to be stated on capital adjustment and are amortized using the effective interest method and charged to interest income until maturity.  The difference between the fair value on the reclassification date and face value of the available-for-sale securities reclassified to held-to-maturity is amortized using the effective interest method and charged to interest income. 

Trading securities are allowed to be reclassified into available-for-sale securities, only when the trading securities lose their marketability, at fair value on the reclassification date.

(9) Recognition of income from subordinated securities issued by Hanvit SPCs

When the impairment of subordinated securities issued by special purpose companies is deemed no longer to exist, a reversal of the related impairment loss and interest income from such subordinated securities in this sequence are recognized.

(10) Accounting for private beneficiary certificates
The wholly owned private beneficiary certificates are each classified based on the Bank’s intention for acquiring the certificates. The assets of wholly owned beneficiary certificates are comprised of deposits, call loans and securities and the Bank recorded all assets and liabilities as their original accounts.  The income is comprised of interest income, realized gains or losses, and gains or losses on valuation, and the Bank recorded all gains and losses from these wholly owned beneficiary certificates as income from private beneficiary certificates.
Interest Income Recognition
The Bank recognizes interest income on loans on an accrual basis, except for interest income on loans having overdue, as defined, interest and principal and loans to customers who are bankrupt.  When a loan is reclassified as a non-accrual loan, the related accrued interest income is reversed and future interest income is recognized on a cash basis. 

Allowances for Possible Losses on Loans and Confirmed Acceptances and Guarantees
The Bank classifies corporate credits into 10 credit grades based on borrowers’ capacity to repay, credit risk and other factors. Credits to small companies and households are classified by past due period and bankruptcy proceedings without considering borrowers’ capacity to repay. The Bank generally classifies all credits to a single borrower in the same category of classification, except for credits guaranteed or credits collateralized by bank deposits, real estate and other assets, taking into consideration of the ability of guarantors to serve the surety obligation, collateral value and other. The classification criteria for credits and the minimum allowance ratio of possible losses on loans pursuant to the policies of the Bank and regulations on supervision of the banking business by the Financial Supervisory Service (“FSS”) are as follows:

	
	
	
	
	Loan loss provisioning standards by the Bank and the FSS

	Credit grade
	
	Classification criteria
	
	Corporate
	
	Households
	
	Credit cards

	Grade 1~6
	
	Normal
	
	0.5% or more
	
	0.75% or more
	
	1% or more

	Grade 7
	
	Precautionary
	
	2% or more
	
	8% or more
	
	12% or more

	Grade 8
	
	Substandard
	
	20% or more
	
	20% or more
	
	20% or more

	Grade 9
	
	Doubtful
	
	50% or more
	
	55% or more
	
	60% or more

	Grade 10
	
	Loss
	
	100%
	
	100%
	
	100%


For the corporate credits amounting to over ￦3 billion per borrower classified as grade 7 or below or designated by the loan committee, the Bank provides an allowance for possible loan losses using a more detailed classification criteria of which loan loss ratios varies from 0.5 to 100.0 percent of its principal and the resulting effect is charged to current operations.
The Bank, based on the asset quality classification above, measures allowance for possible loan losses by the discounted cash flow method and loan loss experience ratio on a single loan and certain group of loans, and the percentage of loan loss allowance established by the Financial Supervisory Commission.

The classification criteria for corporate credits and the allowance ratio of possible losses on loans are as follows:

	Grade
	
	Borrowers’ repayment capability and past due period
	
	Classification 
	
	Ratios

	Grade 1


	
	· 
Credit status is absolutely perfect and regarded as the best.

· 
Below a month past due
	
	Normal
	
	0.5% or more

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Grade 2


	
	· 
Credit status is approximately perfect and regarded as an excellent borrower. 
The repayment capability is next to perfect.

· 
Below one month past due
	
	Normal
	
	0.5% or more

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Grade 3


	
	· 
Cash flows are stable, long-term latent profit is favorable and credit status is very excellent.

· 
Below one month past due
	
	Normal
	
	0.5% or more

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Grade 4


	
	· 
The repayment capability is regarded as proper and credit status is favorable.

· 
Below one month past due
	
	Normal
	
	0.5% or more

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Grade 5


	
	· 
The repayment capability is a little below average and credit status is a little restrictive.

· 
Below one month past due
	
	Normal
	
	0.5% or more

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Grade 6


	
	· 
The repayment capability is changeable and credit status is remarkably restrictive.

· 
Below one month past due
	
	Normal
	
	0.5% or more

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Grade 7


	
	· 
There are signs of insolvency and credit status is doubtful.

· 
From one month to below three months past due
	
	Precautionary
	
	2% or more

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Grade 8


	
	· 
The factors of insolvency are tangible, from which it is judged that serious problems occurred in repayment capability. 

· 
Collectible portion of credits extended to the customers, which are three months or more past due, defaulted, under liquidation and bankruptcy or in the middle of cessation of business 
	
	Substandard
	
	20% or more

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Grade 9


	
	· 
Customers have all the weak points of grade 8 borrower, who are judged to have incurred considerable risks for default in repayment and not able to repay the entire principal.

· 
Amount in excess of collectible portion of credits extended to customers, who have loans that are from three months to below twelve months past due
	
	Doubtful
	
	50% or more

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Grade 10


	
	· 
It is inevitable to account for the losses as the collection of loans is considered to be impossible due to the borrower’ loss of repayment capability.

· 
Amount in excess of collectible portion of credits extended to customers, which are twelve months or more past due, defaulted, under liquidation and bankruptcy or in the middle of cessation of business 
	
	Estimated loss
	
	100%


The Bank also provides an allowance for possible losses on confirmed acceptances and guarantees. Confirmed acceptances and guarantees are classified as of the balance sheet dates using the same criteria used for loan classification. An allowance is the calculated, using the prescribed minimum percentages of 20 percent for substandard, 50 percent for doubtful and 100 percent for loss. No allowance is provided for those confirmed acceptances and guarantees classified as normal or precautionary. The allowance for possible losses on confirmed acceptances and guarantees is presented in other liabilities.
Restructuring of Loans
The Bank adopted the Statement of Korea Accounting Standards (“SKAS”) No. 13 “Troubled Debt Restructurings.” A loan, whose contractual terms are modified in a troubled debt restructuring, is recorded at the present value of expected future cash flows discounted using the original effective interest rate, the loan’s observable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. If the loan will be converted to the equity securities and the number of stock to be issued is determined, the loan is recorded at the lower of its carrying value or fair value of the securities to be issued.  The difference between book value and present value is recorded as allowance for possible loan losses, and is amortized over the remaining maturity using the effective interest rate method, and the amortization amount is recorded as interest income.

Unamortized present value discounts as of the beginning of the current period are reclassified to allowances for possible loan losses pursuant to SKAS No. 13.

Sale of Loans

In case the selling prices of loans are determined by the third party specialist, the Bank changed its policy for gain or loss on sale of loans from adjusting the provision for possible loan losses with the difference between the selling price and book value at the date of sale to recognizing gain or loss on sale of loans in non-operating income or expenses by the difference between the selling price and the book value of previous year end.
The detailed reclassification is shown below and this reclassification does not have any effect on net income or net assets (Unit: Korean won in millions).
	
	
	Before reclassification

	
	After reclassification

	
	
	Provision for possible loan losses
	
	Loss on sales of loans
	
	Gain on sales of loans

	2004
	
	135,104
	
	167,337
	
	32,233

	2003
	
	233,921
	
	234,840
	
	919


Tangible Assets and Depreciation
Tangible assets included in fixed assets are recorded at cost, except for assets revalued upward in accordance with the Asset Revaluation Law.  Routine maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.  Expenditures that result in enhancement of the value or extension of the useful lives of the facilities involved are capitalized as additions to tangible assets.

Depreciation is computed using the declining balance method (the straight-line method for buildings purchased since January 1, 1995 and leasehold improvements) based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as prescribed by the Corporate Income Tax Law of Korea as follows:

	
	
	Year

	Buildings
	
	
40

	Leasehold improvements
	
	
5

	Equipment and furniture
	
	
5


Intangible Assets
Intangible assets included in fixed assets are recorded at the production cost or purchase cost, plus incidental expenses.  Expenditures incurred in conjunction with development of new products or technology, in which the elements of costs can be individually identified and future economic benefits are probably expected, are capitalized as development costs under intangible assets.  If the Bank donates assets such as buildings to government or the local government and is given a right to use or benefit from the assets, the donated assets are recorded as beneficial donated assets under intangible assets.  Intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of five years for development costs, contractual benefit period for the beneficial donated assets and five years for other intangible assets. 

Valuation Allowance for Non-Business Use Property
Non-business use property included in fixed assets is recorded when the Bank acquires collateral by foreclosure of mortgage for loans.  If the auction-bidding price is lower than book value, the difference is provided as a valuation allowance with the valuation loss charged to current operations.

Accounting policies of the Merchant Banking Unit

On July 31, 2003, the Bank entered into a merger agreement with Woori Investment Bank (“WIB”) and subsequently acquired WIB’s short-term merchant banking services, cash management account and leasing businesses. The related assets, liabilities and results of operations have been accounted for in accordance with financial accounting standards and merchant banking accounting standards in the Republic of Korea.

Significant accounting policies of the merchant banking unit are as follows:

(1) Recognition of revenue from factored notes receivable

Interest income on factored notes receivable are calculated over the period up to the maturity date of the factored notes receivable, and when the factored notes receivable are sold, the difference between the purchase price and the selling price, after recognizing the interest income for the holding period, is recorded in current operations.

(2) Accounting for leases

If a non-cancelable lease meets any one of the following criteria, it is accounted for as a financing lease:

a. The lease transfers ownership of the property to the lessee by the end of the lease term;

b. The lease contains an option to purchase the leased property at a bargain price;

c. The lease term is equal to or greater than 75 percent of the estimated economic life of the leased property; and

d. The present value of rental and other minimum lease payments equals or exceeds 90 percent of the fair value of the leased property. 

All other leases are operating leases.

(3) Reclassification of merchant banking unit related items
The Bank reclassified accounts of  merchant banking unit as shown below and these reclassifications do not have any effect on ordinary income, net income and net assets (Unit: Korean won in millions).
	Before changes
	
	After changes

	Account
	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	Account
	
	2004
	
	2003

	(Balance sheets)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Assets of merchant banking unit
	
	￦
1,997,490
	
	￦
1,497,166
	
	Trading securities
	
	￦
536,388
	
	￦
-

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Loans, net of allowances for possible loan losses and present value discounts
	
	838,799
	
	868,499

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Other assets
	
	622,303
	
	628,667

	Liabilities of merchant banking unit
	
	1,485,784
	
	1,082,545
	
	Deposits
	
	1,443,251
	
	1,035,414

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Borrowings
	
	17,291
	
	25,291

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Other liabilities
	
	25,242
	
	21,840

	(Statements of income)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Merchant baking unit operating income
	
	114,437
	
	53,841
	
	Interest income
	
	72,924
	
	16,700

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Other operating income
	
	41,513
	
	37,141

	Merchant baking unit operating expenses
	
	71,840
	
	37,920
	
	Interest expense
	
	40,292
	
	19,978

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Other operating expenses
	
	31,548
	
	17,942


Recognition of Asset Impairment
When the book value of assets (except for trading securities, investment securities and assets valued at present value) exceeds the recoverable value of the assets due to obsolescence, physical damage or a sharp decrease in market value and the difference is material, those assets are adjusted to recoverable value in the balance sheet with the resulting impairment loss charged to current operations.  If the recoverable value of assets increases in subsequent years, the increase in value is credited to operations as a gain until the recoverable value equals the book value of the assets before the impairment loss was recognized.

Amortization of Discount (Premium) on Debentures
Discount or premium on debentures issued is amortized over the period from issuance to maturity using the effective interest rate method.  Amortization of discount or premium is recognized as interest expense or interest income on the debentures.
Accrued Severance Benefits
Directors and employees with more than one year of service are entitled to receive a lump-sum payment upon termination of their service with the Bank, based on their length of service and rate of pay at the time of termination.  They are entitled to receive a lump-sum equivalent to the average 30-day pay for each year. The accrued severance benefits, which would be payable assuming all eligible employees and directors were to resign as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, amounted to ￦236,891 million and ￦159,986 million, respectively. 

The funding of the severance liability is not required.  However, the Bank has insured a portion of its obligations for severance benefits in order to obtain the related tax benefits, by making deposits with life insurance companies.  The Bank has purchased severance insurance, which meets the funding requirement for tax purposes, and made deposits with Samsung Life Insurance and others.  The individual severance insurance deposits, amounting to ￦193,526 million and ￦121,952 million as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, are presented as a deduction from accrued severance benefits because the severance insurance’s beneficiaries are the Bank’s directors and employees.

Bonds under Resale or Repurchase Agreements

Bonds purchased under resale agreements are recorded as loans and bonds sold under repurchase agreements are recorded as borrowings when the Bank purchases or sells securities under resale or repurchase agreements.

Accounting for Derivative Instruments

The Bank accounts for derivative instruments pursuant to the Interpretations on Financial Accounting Standards 53-70 on accounting for derivative instruments.  Derivative instruments are classified as used for trading activities or for hedging activities according to their transaction purpose.  All derivative instruments are accounted for at fair value with the valuation gain or loss recorded as an asset or liability. If the derivative instrument is not part of a transaction qualifying as a hedge, the adjustment to fair value is reflected in current operations. The accounting for derivative transactions that are part of a qualified hedge based both on the purpose of the transaction and on meeting the specified criteria for hedge accounting differs depending on whether the transaction is a fair value hedge or a cash flow hedge.  Fair value hedge accounting is applied to a derivative instrument designated as hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of an asset or a liability or a firm commitment (hedged item) that is attributable to a particular risk.  The gain or loss both on the hedging derivative instruments and on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk is reflected in current operations.  Cash flow hedge accounting is applied to a derivative instrument designated as hedging the exposure to variability in expected future cash flows of an asset or a liability or a forecasted transaction that is attributable to a particular risk.  The effective portion of gain or loss on a derivative instrument designated as a cash flow hedge is recorded as a capital adjustment and the ineffective portion is recorded in current operations.  The effective portion of gain or loss recorded as a capital adjustment is reclassified to current earnings in the same period during which the hedged transaction affects earnings.  If the hedged transaction results in the acquisition of an asset or the incurrence of a liability, the gain or loss in capital adjustment is added to or deducted from the asset or the liability.  

Payment to Guaranteed Trust Accounts

The Bank guarantees a fixed rate of return on, and/or the repayment of principal of, certain trust accounts.  In accordance with such arrangements, payments to the trust accounts from the bank accounts are recorded as other operating expense of the bank accounts.

Income Tax Expense (Benefits)

Income tax expense (benefits) is the amount currently payable for the period added to or deducted from the change in deferred income tax.  However, deferred income tax assets are recognized only if the future tax benefits from accumulated temporary differences and tax loss carry-forwards are reasonably expected to be realizable.  The deferred income tax assets or liabilities will be charged or credited to income tax expense in the period each temporary difference reverses in the future. Deferred income taxes are recalculated based on the actual tax rate in effect at each balance sheet date.
Accounting for Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation
The Bank maintains its accounts in Korean won.  Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Korean won based on the prevailing rate of exchange on the transaction date.  The Korean won equivalent of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated in these financial statements based on the Base Rate  (￦1,043.80 and ￦1,197.80 to $1.00 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively) or cross rates as of the balance sheet dates.  Translation gains and losses on foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are credited or charged to operations.  Financial statements of overseas branches and subsidiaries in which investments are accounted for the using equity method are translated based on the Base Rate announced by Seoul Money Brokerage Services, Ltd. at the balance sheet dates.

Accounting for Guaranteed Trust Accounts

Certain trust accounts which the Bank guarantees a fixed rate of return on, and/or the repayment of principal of are accounted for as follows:

Debt securities are recorded at fair value or present value of future cash flows using yields for valuation of debt securities disclosed by independent security appraisal companies or Korea Securities Computer Corp. However, debt securities, of which such valuation is not available, are valued based on an appraisal of the Security Valuation Committee of the Bank.

Stocks are stated at acquisition cost determined by the individual moving average method plus incidental expenses.  Stocks traded on the Korea Stock Exchange or the Korea Securities Dealers Automated Quotation are stated at market value and unlisted stocks are stated at acquisition cost.

An allowance for possible credit losses on assets, which are managed in unspecified trust accounts but not recorded at market value, is provided based on asset quality classification criteria of the bank accounts reflecting the asset quality classification criteria regulated by the Korea Financial Supervisory Services.  The assets are classified as of the balance sheet dates as normal, precautionary, substandard, doubtful, or loss.  An allowance is then calculated on the category balances using the prescribed percentages of  zero or more percent (no less than  0.5 percent for trust accounts which the Bank guarantees a fixed rate of return), no less than  2 percent, no less than  20 percent, no less than  50 percent, and 100 percent, respectively.  

Ordinary Income per Share and Net Income per Share

Ordinary income per share and net income per share are computed by dividing ordinary income and net income, respectively, by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding.  The number of shares used in computing earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were 620 million shares and 560 million shares, respectively.

Accounting for Merger of Woori Credit Card Co., Ltd. (“Woori Card”)

The Bank recorded assets and liabilities of Woori Card at the carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements of WFH as of the merger date pursuant to the “Accounting Standards for Business Combination, Chapter 4, Mergers between Subsidiaries, Korea Accounting Standards Board.”
Reclassification in Prior Year’s Financial Statements
Certain reclassification has been made in prior year’s financial statements to conform to accounting policies changed in the current year. Such reclassification did not have an effect on previously reported ordinary income, net income and net assets.

3. 
CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS
(1) Cash and due from banks as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Cash and checks
	
	￦
1,478,399
	
	￦
1,822,177

	Foreign currencies
	
	156,714
	
	139,613

	Due from banks in local currency
	
	1,863,412
	
	2,400,836

	Due from banks in foreign currencies
	
	265,264
	
	531,519

	
	
	￦
3,763,789
	
	￦
4,894,145


(2) 
Due from banks by financial institutions as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were comprised of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	
	
	Interest rate (%)
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Financial institution
	
	2004
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Due from banks in local currency:
	
	BOK
	
	-
	
	￦
1,502,473
	
	￦
2,235,489

	
	
	Domestic banks
	
	0.1~3.2
	
	337,546
	
	164,302

	
	
	Other 
	
	2.0~3.0
	
	23,393
	
	1,045

	
	
	
	
	
	
	1,863,412
	
	2,400,836

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Due from banks in foreign currencies:
	
	BOK
	
	-
	
	61,185
	
	177,775

	
	
	Domestic banks
	
	2.8
	
	19,705
	
	55,699

	
	
	Foreign financial institutions
	
	0.6~2.9
	
	184,324
	
	298,045

	
	
	Other
	
	-
	
	50
	
	-

	
	
	
	
	
	
	265,264
	
	531,519

	
	
	
	
	
	
	￦
2,128,676
	
	￦
2,932,355


(3) Restricted due from banks as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	Financial institution
	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	Reason of restriction

	Due from banks in local currency:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Reserve deposits
	
	BOK
	
	￦
1,502,473
	
	￦
2,235,489
	
	BOK Act

	Other deposits


	
	Samsung Securities and other
	
	23,166
	
	1,270
	
	Futures margin

	
	
	Korea Stock Exchange
	
	226
	
	222
	
	Reserve for compensation for default loss and other

	
	
	Chohung Bank and other
	
	-
	
	14
	
	Deposit for guaranteeing overdrafts

	
	
	
	
	1,525,865
	
	2,236,995
	
	

	Due from banks in foreign currencies:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Due from banks on demand
	
	BOK
	
	61,185
	
	177,775
	
	BOK Act

	
	
	Bank of Japan
	
	316
	
	970
	
	Reserve deposits 

	
	
	Central Bank of Republic of Indonesia
	
	7,689
	
	6,964
	
	Reserve deposits 

	Due from banks on time


	
	Industrial & Commercial Bank of China and other
	
	16,792
	
	17,841
	
	Reserve deposits and other

	Other


	
	Lehman Brothers and other
	
	25,217
	
	47,912
	
	Collateral for derivatives and other

	
	
	Bangladesh Bank and other
	
	17,471
	
	33,537
	
	Reserve for setup of financial institution and other

	
	
	
	
	128,670
	
	284,999
	
	

	
	
	
	
	￦
1,654,535
	
	￦
2,521,994
	
	


4. SECURITIES
(1) Securities other than equity securities accounted for using the equity method of accounting as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	(2004)
	
	Face value
	
	Acquisition

Cost
	
	Amortized

cost
	
	Fair value

	Trading securities:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Equity securities
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
187,251
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
205,938

	Government bonds
	
	1,981,911
	
	2,025,347
	
	2,021,948
	
	2,030,117

	Finance debentures
	
	1,236,776
	
	1,217,972
	
	1,221,404
	
	1,222,893

	Corporate bonds
	
	531,059
	
	530,464
	
	492,991
	
	494,873

	Beneficiary certificates
	
	-
	
	144,220
	
	-
	
	68,271

	Debt securities in foreign currencies
	
	44,622
	
	44,472
	
	44,885
	
	44,754

	Other
	
	-
	
	598,932
	
	-
	
	599,894

	
	
	3,794,368
	
	4,748,658
	
	3,781,228
	
	4,666,740

	Available-for-sale securities:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Equity securities
	
	-
	
	1,209,269
	
	-
	
	1,638,907

	Capital contributions
	
	-
	
	14,886
	
	-
	
	14,886

	Government bonds
	
	593,424
	
	614,376
	
	609,717
	
	612,003

	Finance debentures
	
	3,716,524
	
	3,675,401
	
	3,679,857
	
	3,711,076

	Corporate bonds
	
	3,515,086
	
	3,511,761
	
	3,449,468
	
	3,475,996

	Beneficiary certificates
	
	-
	
	104,425
	
	-
	
	99,834

	Equity securities in foreign currencies
	
	-
	
	1,591
	
	-
	
	275

	Debt securities in foreign currencies
	
	1,212,692
	
	1,112,603
	
	1,025,863
	
	1,032,457

	Other
	
	-
	
	31,266
	
	-
	
	54,962

	
	
	9,037,726
	
	10,275,578
	
	8,764,905
	
	10,640,396

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Held-to-maturity securities:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Government bonds
	
	192,229
	
	176,321
	
	189,304
	
	211,641

	Finance debentures
	
	245,000
	
	234,507
	
	244,123
	
	244,341

	Corporate bonds
	
	3,711,572
	
	3,711,572
	
	3,711,572
	
	3,834,032

	Debt securities in foreign currencies
	
	339,727
	
	342,154
	
	313,610
	
	313,610


	Securities lent
	
	20,578
	
	20,578
	
	20,578
	
	20,578

	
	
	4,509,106
	
	4,485,132
	
	4,479,187
	
	4,624,202

	
	
	￦
17,341,200
	
	￦
19,509,368
	
	￦
17,025,320
	
	￦
19,931,338


	(2003)
	
	Face value
	
	Acquisition

cost
	
	Amortized

cost
	
	Fair value

	Trading securities:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Equity securities
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
98,726
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
106,681

	Government bonds
	
	531,125
	
	530,765
	
	529,189
	
	529,211

	Finance debentures
	
	498,992
	
	489,409
	
	489,217
	
	486,814

	Corporate bonds
	
	544,196
	
	548,248
	
	547,769
	
	548,023

	Beneficiary certificates
	
	-
	
	464,646
	
	-
	
	491,909


	Debt securities in foreign currencies
	
	23,956
	
	23,869
	
	23,869
	
	23,856

	Other
	
	-
	
	20,342
	
	-
	
	22,351

	
	
	1,598,269
	
	2,176,005
	
	1,590,044
	
	2,208,845


	(2003)
	
	Face value
	
	Acquisition

cost
	
	Amortized

cost
	
	Fair value

	Available-for-sale securities:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Equity securities
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
1,024,249
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
1,047,736

	Capital contributions
	
	-
	
	26,680
	
	-
	
	43,477

	Government bonds
	
	620,804
	
	633,021
	
	628,689
	
	628,022

	Finance debentures
	
	3,969,644
	
	3,842,636
	
	3,873,667
	
	3,839,812

	Corporate bonds
	
	3,514,105
	
	3,415,016
	
	3,375,032
	
	3,350,473

	Beneficiary certificates
	
	-
	
	1,561,730
	
	-
	
	1,566,400

	Equity securities in foreign currencies
	
	-
	
	35,445
	
	-
	
	2,794

	Debt securities in foreign currencies
	
	1,332,960
	
	1,298,511
	
	1,299,854
	
	1,323,760

	Other
	
	-
	
	131,266
	
	-
	
	130,441

	
	
	9,437,513
	
	11,968,554
	
	9,177,242
	
	11,932,915

	Held-to-maturity securities:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Government bonds
	
	261,892
	
	254,045
	
	258,479
	
	286,331

	Finance debentures
	
	120,000
	
	109,273
	
	111,806
	
	111,902

	Corporate bonds
	
	5,256,263
	
	5,315,866
	
	5,256,228
	
	5,491,095

	Debt securities in foreign currencies
	
	291,153
	
	290,522
	
	263,061
	
	263,061

	Securities lent
	
	103,181
	
	103,181
	
	103,181
	
	108,353

	
	
	6,032,489
	
	6,072,887
	
	5,992,755
	
	6,260,742

	
	
	￦
17,068,271
	
	￦
20,217,446
	
	￦
16,760,041
	
	￦
20,402,502


Fair value of trading debt securities in local currency and available-for-sale debt securities in local currency is determined based on closing yields of bonds on the balance sheet dates announced by independent security appraisal companies and accrued interest income was excluded from fair value amounts.  Fair value of trading and available-for-sale debt securities in foreign currencies is determined by the latest market prices announced by market price information providers or yields provided by professional dealers of bonds.  Acquisition costs of securities in foreign currencies are translated into Korean won based on the Base Rate published by Seoul Money Brokerage Services, Ltd. (“Base Rate”) at balance sheet dates. 

As of December 31, 2004, the Bank held ￦136,291 million of Dual Indexed Floating Rate Note (“DIFRN”) and ￦50,814 million of Equity Linked Securities (“ELS”) in trading securities and available-for-sale securities. DIFRN is a contract that the interest rates are changed based on structured interest conditions and ELS is a contract that the interest and repayment amount are linked with the movement of the stock price index. Such securities are carried at fair value as of balance sheet date.
(2) 
Available-for-sale equity securities and capital contributions as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions, Shares in thousands):

	(2004)
	
	Shares
	
	Percentage of ownership
(%)
	
	Acquisition

cost
	
	Fair value or net asset
	
	Book value

	(Equity securities)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Listed equity securities:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Hynix Semiconductor Inc. (“Hynix”)
	
	41,839
	
	9.4
	
	￦
157,282
	
	￦
397,637
	
	￦
397,637

	Hyundai Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd.
	
	15,952
	
	14.6
	
	232,204
	
	248,061
	
	248,061

	LG Card Co., Ltd. (“LG Card”)
	
	53,146
	
	10.3
	
	65,925
	
	211,415
	
	211,415

	Daewoo Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd.
	
	19,022
	
	5.6
	
	73,371
	
	120,029
	
	120,029

	SK Networks Co., Ltd. 

(“SK Networks”)
	
	11,009
	
	3.1
	
	47,265
	
	74,155
	
	74,155

	KP Chemical Corporation
	
	8,167
	
	8.4
	
	16,342
	
	40,426
	
	40,426

	Daerim Corporation
	
	5,217
	
	20.5
	
	￦
14,022
	
	￦
35,632
	
	￦
35,632

	Kocref Cr-Reit 1
	
	3,700
	
	13.9
	
	18,500
	
	24,235
	
	24,235

	Ssangyong Motor Company
	
	3,400
	
	2.8
	
	9,349
	
	20,400
	
	20,400

	Daewoo International Corporation
	
	1,875
	
	2.0
	
	4,602
	
	19,497
	
	19,497

	Hyundai Corporation
	
	3,923
	
	17.1
	
	10,015
	
	13,495
	
	13,495

	Other
	
	-
	
	-
	
	108,822
	
	78,372
	
	78,372

	
	
	
	
	
	
	757,699
	
	1,283,354
	
	1,283,354

	Unlisted equity securities:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Stocks subject to fair value valuation:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Korea Securities Corporation
	
	5,310
	
	7.8
	
	27,186
	
	28,898
	
	28,898

	SK Networks(*)
	
	920
	
	0.3
	
	33,957
	
	50,865
	
	50,865

	Korea Aerospace Industries Co., Ltd.(*)
	
	4,468
	
	4.8
	
	22,338
	
	16,539
	
	16,539

	Arirang Restructure Fund
	
	4,980
	
	7.5
	
	12,706
	
	9,921
	
	9,921

	Moogunghwa Restructure Fund
	
	4,980
	
	7.5
	
	10,511
	
	8,773
	
	8,773

	Seoul Debt Control Fund
	
	9,060
	
	7.6
	
	8,310
	
	7,866
	
	7,866

	Other
	
	-
	
	-
	
	56,613
	
	81,386
	
	81,386

	Stocks excluded from fair value valuation:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Samsung Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
	
	496
	
	2.5
	
	142,122
	
	248,946
	
	142,122

	Other 
	
	-
	
	-
	
	137,827
	
	10,097
	
	9,183

	(*)Preferred stock
	
	
	
	
	
	451,570
	
	463,291
	
	355,553

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
1,209,269
	
	
1,746,645
	
	
1,638,907

	(Capital contributions)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Korea Asset Management Corporation (“KAMCO”)
	
	-
	
	4.3
	
	
6,043
	
	
8,950
	
	
6,043

	Other
	
	-
	
	-
	
	8,843
	
	8,663
	
	8,843

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
14,886
	
	
17,613
	
	
14,886

	
	
	
	
	
	
	￦
1,224,155
	
	￦
1,764,258
	
	￦
1,653,793


	(2003)
	
	Shares
	
	Percentage of ownership
(%)
	
	Acquisition

cost
	
	Fair value or net asset  
	
	Book value

	(Equity securities)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Listed equity securities:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Hynix
	
	59,839
	
	13.5
	
	￦
224,948
	
	￦
335,098
	
	￦
335,098

	Hyundai Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd.
	
	3,935
	
	7.0
	
	114,412
	
	40,778
	
	40,778

	Daewoo Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd.
	
	19,022
	
	5.8
	
	73,371
	
	105,953
	
	105,953

	SK Networks
	
	13,691
	
	4.1
	
	27,383
	
	46,784
	
	46,784

	KP Chemical Corporation
	
	15,420
	
	16.3
	
	24,193
	
	31,534
	
	31,534

	Daerim Corporation
	
	2,669
	
	23.2
	
	6,981
	
	10,675
	
	10,675

	Kocref Cr-Reit 1
	
	3,700
	
	13.9
	
	18,500
	
	19,129
	
	19,129

	Kocref Cr-Reit 2
	
	1,400
	
	12.5
	
	7,000
	
	6,958
	
	6,958

	Kocref Cr-Reit 3
	
	2,000
	
	14.7
	
	10,000
	
	10,200
	
	10,200

	Ssangyong Motor Company
	
	3,400
	
	2.8
	
	9,349
	
	35,020
	
	35,020

	Daewoo International Corporation
	
	1,875
	
	2.0
	
	4,602
	
	13,685
	
	13,685

	Daewoo Securities Co., Ltd.
	
	3,130
	
	1.5
	
	55,215
	
	13,303
	
	13,303

	Hyundai Corporation
	
	3,923
	
	17.1
	
	10,015
	
	11,847
	
	11,847

	Daewoo Precision Industries
	
	736
	
	7.6
	
	3,057
	
	11,410
	
	11,410

	Ssangyong Corporation
	
	2,831
	
	16.3
	
	38,821
	
	11,040
	
	11,040

	Hankang Restructuring Fund
	
	4,160
	
	3.3
	
	￦
7,392
	
	￦
7,571
	
	￦
7,571

	YTN
	
	3,190
	
	7.6
	
	15,950
	
	4,594
	
	4,594

	INI Steel
	
	175
	
	0.2
	
	628
	
	1,839
	
	1,839

	Other
	
	-
	
	-
	
	33,824
	
	11,681
	
	11,681

	
	
	
	
	
	
	685,641
	
	729,099
	
	729,099

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Unlisted equity securities:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Stocks subject to fair value valuation:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Seoul Debt Control Fund
	
	9,060
	
	7.6
	
	
13,598
	
	
12,922
	
	
12,922

	Arirang Restructure Fund
	
	4,980
	
	7.5
	
	15,545
	
	14,056
	
	14,056

	Moogunghwa Restructure Fund
	
	4,980
	
	7.5
	
	15,095
	
	12,410
	
	12,410

	Korea Aerospace Industries Co., Ltd.(*)
	
	4,468
	
	4.8
	
	22,338
	
	14,842
	
	14,842

	SK Networks(*)
	
	1,433
	
	0.4
	
	28,663
	
	42,575
	
	42,575

	Other
	
	-
	
	-
	
	11,370
	
	2,504
	
	2,504

	Stocks excluded from fair value valuation:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Samsung Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
	
	496
	
	2.5
	
	142,122
	
	199,582
	
	142,122

	Korea Securities Corporation
	
	5,310
	
	7.8
	
	27,186
	
	35,803
	
	27,186

	Other
	
	-
	
	-
	
	62,691
	
	56,570
	
	50,020

	(*)Preferred stock
	
	
	
	
	
	338,608
	
	391,264
	
	318,637

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
1,024,249
	
	
1,120,363
	
	
1,047,736

	(Capital contributions)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Stock Market Stabilization Fund
	
	-
	
	7.9
	
	
8,036
	
	
24,040
	
	
24,040

	KAMCO
	
	-
	
	4.3
	
	
6,043
	
	
9,248
	
	
6,043

	Other
	
	-
	
	-
	
	
12,601
	
	
13,936
	
	
13,394

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
26,680

	
	
47,224
	
	
43,477

	
	
	
	
	
	
	￦
1,050,929
	
	￦
1,167,587
	
	￦
1,091,213


Seoul Debt Control Fund, Arirang Restructuring Fund and Moogunghwa Restructure Funds were valued at quoted market prices which are disclosed according to ‘Securities Investment Company Act’ based on the fair value of the assets invested. The other unlisted equity securities subject to fair value valuation were valued based on Korea Bond Pricing & KR Co.’s valuation report. Stocks excluded from fair value valuation are those of which are determined by a third-party valuation firm that the fair value cannot be reliably measured, or of which fair value is not readily available and the book value is below ￦1 billion.

(3) 

The portfolio of securities, other than equity securities in foreign currencies, equity securities accounted for using the equity method and securities lent, by industry as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Percentage (%)

	
	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	(Trading securities)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Public service
	
	￦
2,553,195
	
	￦
843,202
	
	54.7
	
	38.2

	Financial services
	
	1,453,620
	
	981,737
	
	31.1
	
	44.4

	Manufacturing 
	
	358,804
	
	229,006
	
	7.7
	
	10.4

	Construction
	
	4,415
	
	1,804
	
	0.1
	
	0.1

	Wholesale and retail
	
	1,830
	
	3,923
	
	0.1
	
	0.2

	Other
	
	294,876
	
	149,173
	
	6.3
	
	6.7

	
	
	4,666,740
	
	2,208,845
	
	100.0
	
	100.0

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	(Available-for-sale securities)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Public service
	
	￦
5,499,380
	
	￦
3,192,559
	
	51.7
	
	26.8

	Financial services
	
	2,083,536
	
	6,181,755
	
	19.6
	
	51.8

	Manufacturing 
	
	950,088
	
	837,162
	
	8.9
	
	7.0

	Construction
	
	407,180
	
	153,301
	
	3.8
	
	1.3

	Wholesale and retail
	
	147,171
	
	158,775
	
	1.4
	
	1.3

	Other
	
	1,552,766
	
	1,406,569
	
	14.6
	
	11.8

	
	
	10,640,121
	
	11,930,121
	
	100.0
	
	100.0

	(Held-to-maturity securities)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Public service
	
	4,238,807
	
	5,553,576
	
	95.1
	
	94.3

	Financial services
	
	31,529
	
	141,183
	
	0.7
	
	2.4

	Other
	
	188,273
	
	194,815
	
	4.2
	
	3.3

	
	
	4,458,609
	
	5,889,574
	
	100.0
	
	100.0

	
	
	￦
19,765,470
	
	￦
20,028,540
	
	
	
	


(4) 
The portfolio of securities, other than equity securities accounted for using the equity method, securities lent and foreign currency denominated securities, by type as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Percentage (%)

	
	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	(Trading securities)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Fixed rate bonds
	
	￦
3,591,358
	
	￦
1,227,662
	
	77.7
	
	56.2

	Floating rate notes
	
	156,525
	
	296,224
	
	3.4
	
	13.6

	Equity securities
	
	205,938
	
	106,681
	
	4.5
	
	4.9


	Other
	
	668,165
	
	554,422
	
	14.4
	
	25.3

	
	
	4,621,986
	
	2,184,989
	
	100.0
	
	100.0

	(Available-for-sale securities)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Fixed rate bonds
	
	5,856,686
	
	5,821,731
	
	61.0
	
	54.9

	Floating rate notes
	
	1,900,548
	
	1,963,759
	
	19.8
	
	18.5

	Convertible bonds
	
	41,841
	
	32,817
	
	0.4
	
	0.3

	Equity securities
	
	1,638,907
	
	1,047,736
	
	17.1
	
	9.9

	Capital contributions
	
	14,886
	
	43,477
	
	0.1
	
	0.4

	Other
	
	154,796
	
	1,696,841
	
	1.6
	
	16.0

	
	
	9,607,664
	
	10,606,361
	
	100.0
	
	100.0

	(Held-to-maturity securities)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Fixed rate bonds
	
	2,521,611
	
	5,625,966
	
	60.8
	
	100.0

	Floating rate notes
	
	1,623,388
	
	547
	
	39.2
	
	-

	
	
	4,144,999
	
	5,626,513
	
	100.0
	
	100.0

	
	
	￦
18,374,649
	
	￦
18,417,863
	
	
	
	


(5) The portfolio of corporate bonds other than trading securities by issuer as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	(Available-for-sale securities)
	
	
	
	

	KDIC
	
	￦
1,828,299
	
	￦
1,908,918

	Small Business Corporation
	
	121,737
	
	60,499

	Incheon International Airport Corporation
	
	114,156
	
	109,681

	WFIS 1st SPC
	
	101,483
	
	98,342

	Pusan Urbane Transit Authority
	
	91,070
	
	70,413

	Kumho Industrial 3rd SPC
	
	70,791
	
	79,819

	KAMCO
	
	61,474
	
	95,937

	Korea Housing Finance Corporation
	
	25,151
	
	-

	Other
	
	1,061,835
	
	926,864

	
	
	3,475,996
	
	3,350,473

	(Held-to-maturity securities)
	
	
	
	

	KDIC
	
	3,711,572
	
	5,218,098

	Korea Land Development Corporation
	
	-
	
	25,011

	Other
	
	-
	
	13,119

	
	
	3,711,572
	
	5,256,228

	
	
	￦
7,187,568
	
	￦
8,606,701


(6) 
Beneficiary certificates by issuer as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

(Trading securities)

	Issuer
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Kyobo Investment Trust Management Co., Ltd.
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
71,121

	Daehan Investment Trust Management Co., Ltd.
	
	-
	
	90,391

	Deutsche Securities Korea Co., Ltd.
	
	-
	
	102,372

	Woori Investment Trust Management Co., Ltd.
	
	59,445
	
	49,862

	Hanil Investment Trust Management Co., Ltd.
	
	1,785
	
	-

	Other
	
	7,041
	
	178,163

	
	
	￦
68,271
	
	￦
491,909


(Available-for-sale securities)-
	Issuer
	
	2004
	
	2003

	The Korea Development Bank 
	
	￦
49,561
	
	￦
54,012

	KDB Investment Trust Management Co., Ltd.
	
	3,959
	
	
4,453

	Daehan Investment Trust Management Co., Ltd.
	
	-
	
	
20,200

	Woori Investment Trust Management Co., Ltd.
	
	42,010
	
	
856,228

	Dongwon BNP Investment Trust Management Co., Ltd.
	
	-
	
	
77,687

	Deutsche Securities Korea Co., Ltd.
	
	-
	
	
61,771

	Kyobo Investment Trust Management Co., Ltd.
	
	-
	
	
61,480

	I Investment Trust Management Co., Ltd.
	
	-
	
	
60,141

	Other
	
	4,304
	
	
370,428

	
	
	￦
99,834
	
	￦
1,566,400


(7) 
Securities in foreign currencies other than equity securities accounted for using the equity method as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Equity securities
	
	￦
275
	
	￦
2,794

	Debt securities
	
	1,390,821
	
	
1,610,677

	
	
	￦
1,391,096
	
	￦
1,613,471


1) The portfolio of equity securities in foreign currencies as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	(2004)
	Shares
	
	Percentage

of

ownership

(%)
	
	Acquisition

cost
	
	Net asset

or fair

value
	
	Book value

	Unlisted equity securities:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cairo Far East Bank
	1,812
	
	6.9
	
	￦
1,591
	
	￦
899
	
	￦
275


	(2003)
	Shares
	
	Percentage

of

ownership

(%)
	
	Acquisition

cost
	
	Net asset

or fair

value
	
	Book

value

	Unlisted equity securities:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cairo Far East Bank
	1,812
	
	6.9
	
	￦
1,826
	
	￦
1,826
	
	￦
1,826

	Hanvit LSF
	6,000
	
	50.0
	
	
33,612
	
	
968
	
	
968

	
	
	
	
	
	￦
35,438
	
	￦
2,794
	
	￦
2,794


2) The portfolio of debt securities in foreign currencies by issuer’s country as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Percentage (%)

	Countries
	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Korea
	
	￦
877,340
	
	￦
1,104,633
	
	63.1
	
	68.6

	U.S.A.
	
	288,565
	
	
303,055
	
	20.7
	
	18.8

	Japan
	
	25,051
	
	
28,747
	
	1.8
	
	1.8

	UK
	
	3,163
	
	
27,431
	
	0.2
	
	1.7

	Switzerland
	
	-
	
	
23,836
	
	-
	
	1.5

	China
	
	19,509
	
	
21,891
	
	1.4
	
	1.4

	France
	
	-
	
	
11,918
	
	-
	
	0.7

	Mexico
	
	5,872
	
	
11,162
	
	0.4
	
	0.7

	Other
	
	171,321
	
	
78,004
	
	12.4
	
	4.8

	
	
	￦
1,390,821
	
	￦
1,610,677
	
	100.0
	
	100.0


3) The portfolio of debt securities in foreign currencies, by foreign currency and 
type, as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	Percentage (%)

	Currencies
	
	Type
	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	2004
	
	2003

	U.S. dollars
	
	Fixed rate note
	
	￦
510,109
	
	￦
558,877
	
	36.7
	
	34.7

	
	
	Floating rate note
	
	590,965
	
	
626,036
	
	42.5
	
	38.9

	
	
	Exchangeable bond
	
	67,132
	
	
117,057
	
	4.8
	
	7.3

	
	
	Convertible bond
	
	13,120
	
	
63,182
	
	0.9
	
	3.9

	
	
	Subordinated floating rate note
	
	30,313
	
	
46,140
	
	2.2
	
	2.9

	
	
	Other
	
	70,731
	
	
90,345
	
	5.1
	
	5.6

	
	
	
	
	1,282,370
	
	
1,501,637
	
	92.2
	
	93.3

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Japan yen
	
	Fixed rate note
	
	11,943
	
	
53,467
	
	0.9
	
	3.3

	
	
	Floating rate note
	
	-
	
	
6,684
	
	-
	
	0.4

	
	
	
	
	11,943
	
	
60,151
	
	0.9
	
	3.7

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Indonesia rupiah
	
	Fixed rate note
	
	86,842
	
	
38,316
	
	6.2
	
	2.4

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	China yuan
	
	Fixed rate note
	
	7,567
	
	
8,467
	
	0.5
	
	0.5

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Singapore dollars
	
	Fixed rate note
	
	2,099
	
	
2,106
	
	0.2
	
	0.1

	
	
	
	
	￦
1,390,821

	
	￦
1,610,677
	
	100.0
	
	100.0


(8) 
Securities lent as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	Account
	
	Lent to
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Government bond
	
	Dongbu Construction
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
15,764

	Corporate bond
	
	Doosan Heavy Industry and others
	
	
20,578
	
	
87,417

	
	
	
	
	￦
20,578
	
	￦
103,181


(9) 
Equity securities accounted for using the equity method

1) The portfolio of equity securities accounted for using the equity method as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions, shares in thousands):

	(2004)
	
	Shares
	
	Percentage

of

ownership

(%)
	
	Acquisition

cost
	
	Balance

as of 

Jan. 1, 2004
	
	Gain on

valuation

using the

equity

method
	
	Other

changes
	
	Balance as of  Dec. 31, 2004
	
	Net asset value

	BC Card 
	
	1,217
	
	27.7
	
	￦
10,876
	
	￦
40,543
	
	￦
2,216
	
	￦
172
	
	￦
42,931
	
	￦
42,931

	KFS
	
	233
	
	16.7
	
	961
	
	1,656
	
	346
	
	(70)
	
	1,932
	
	2,021

	Byucksan
	
	11,354
	
	29.9
	
	35,919
	
	53,345
	
	4,703
	
	(58,048)
	
	-
	
	-

	
	
	
	
	
	
	￦
47,756
	
	￦
95,544
	
	￦
7,265

	
	￦
(57,946)
	
	￦
44,863

	
	￦
44,952


	(2003)
	
	Shares
	
	Percentage

of

ownership

(%)
	
	Acquisition

cost
	
	Balance

as of 

Jan. 1, 2003
	
	Gain on

valuation

using the

equity

method
	
	Other

changes
	
	Balance as of  Dec. 31, 2003
	
	Net asset value

	BC Card
	
	1,217
	
	27.7
	
	￦
10,876
	
	￦
40,556
	
	￦
1,526
	
	￦
(1,539)
	
	￦
40,543
	
	￦
40,543

	KFS
	
	233
	
	16.7
	
	961
	
	2,600
	
	179
	
	(1,123)
	
	1,656
	
	1,656

	Byucksan
	
	11,354
	
	29.9
	
	35,919
	
	37,835
	
	12,587
	
	2,923
	
	53,345
	
	17,249

	
	
	
	
	
	
	￦
47,756
	
	￦
80,991
	
	￦
14,292
	
	￦
261
	
	￦
95,544
	
	￦
59,448


2) The other changes in equity securities accounted for using the equity method for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):
	(2004)
	
	Purchases

(disposals)
	
	Capital adjustment
	
	Retained earnings
	
	Dividends received
	
	Total

	BC Card
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
172
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
172

	KFS
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	(70)
	
	(70)

	Byucksan
	
	(49,354)
	
	(5,314)
	
	(1,677)
	
	(1,703)
	
	(58,048)

	
	
	￦
(49,354)
	
	￦
(5,142)
	
	￦
(1,677)
	
	￦
(1,773)
	
	￦
(57,946)


	(2003)
	
	Purchases

(disposals)
	
	Capital adjustment
	
	Retained earnings
	
	Dividends received
	
	Prior year error
	
	Total

	BC Card
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
(322)
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
(1,217)
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
(1,539)

	KFS
	
	(809)
	
	-
	
	-
	
	(106)
	
	(208)
	
	(1,123)

	Byucksan
	
	(799)
	
	5,432
	
	(235)
	
	(1,152)
	
	(323)
	
	2,923

	
	
	￦
(1,608)
	
	￦
5,110
	
	￦
(235)
	
	￦
(2,475)
	
	￦
(531)
	
	￦
261


3) The fiscal year-end of equity method investees and the balance sheet dates of the financial statements of these companies used in preparing the Bank’s financial statements as of December 31, 2004 were as follows:

	
	
	Fiscal
	
	Balance sheet dates

	
	
	year-end
	
	2004
	
	2003

	BC Card
	
	December 31
	
	December 31
	
	December 31

	KFS
	
	March 31
	
	December 31
	
	December 31


4) As of December 31, 2003,
 the differences from acquisition cost and net asset value of the investee companies were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	Balance as of

Jan. 1, 2003
	
	Increase

(decrease)
	
	Amortization

(recovery)
	
	Balance as of Dec. 31, 2003

	BC Card
	
	￦
(1,640)
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
1,640
	
	￦
-

	KFS
	
	
13
	
	
(9)
	
	
(4)
	
	
-

	Byucksan
	
	
(55,608)
	
	
9,818
	
	
9,694
	
	
(36,096)

	
	
	￦
(57,235)
	
	￦
9,809
	
	￦
11,330
	
	￦
(36,096)


(10) 
Book value and fair value of available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities other than securities in foreign currencies, by maturity as of December 31, 2004 are summarized as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	Less than

1 year
	
	Less than

5 years
	
	Less than

10 years
	
	More than

10 years
	
	Total

	Available-for-sale securities:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Book value (fair value)
	
	￦
2,987,337
	
	￦
5,414,428
	
	￦
319,841
	
	￦
109,926
	
	￦
8,831,532

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Held-to-maturity securities:
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Book value 
	
	
4,141,579
	
	
282,034
	
	
53,413
	
	
2,161
	
	
4,479,187

	Fair value 
	
	
4,267,053
	
	
198,899
	
	
156,089
	
	
2,161
	
	
4,624,202


(11) 
Debt securities issued by foreign governments and asset-backed debt securities as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Debt securities issued by foreign governments:
	
	
	
	

	Available-for-sale securities (securities in foreign currencies)
	
	￦
5,871
	
	￦
18,409

	Held-to-maturity securities (securities in foreign currencies)
	
	
6,967
	
	
10,104

	
	
	￦
12,838
	
	￦
28,513

	Asset-backed debt securities:
	
	
	
	

	Trading securities (corporate bonds)
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
39,839

	Available-for-sale securities (corporate bonds)
	
	
3,339
	
	974,988

	Available-for-sale securities (securities in foreign currencies)
	
	
912,406
	
	65,757

	Held-to-maturity securities (securities in foreign currencies)
	
	
200,313
	
	154,391

	
	
	￦
1,116,058
	
	￦
1,234,975


(12) 
As of December 31, 2004, other trading securities included ￦536,388 million and ￦12,337 million of Commercial papers issued by Pilot SPC and other, KCC and other and ￦50,815 million of ELS issued by Samsung Securities and other. Other available-for-sale securities consisted of 15,786 million of securities issued by Shin-woo CRV and ￦39,176 million of Commercial papers issued by Hyundai Capital, Hyundai Petrochemical Co., Ltd. and others.

5. LOANS
(1) Loans as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	2004
	
	2003

	Loans in local currency
	￦
64,937,054
	
	￦
61,882,945

	Loans in foreign currencies
	6,741,726
	
	6,750,453

	Bills bought in local currency
	215,985
	
	459,030

	Bills bought in foreign currencies
	3,747,546
	
	3,656,082

	Advances for customers
	28,185
	
	72,622

	Factoring receivables
	19,088
	
	-

	Credit card accounts
	1,870,488
	
	3,597

	Bonds purchased with resale agreements
	37,300
	
	130,000

	Call loans
	1,054,566
	
	700,201

	Privately placed bonds
	306,931
	
	478,100

	Loans for debt-equity swap
	-
	
	30,604

	Investment in direct financing leases
	115,670
	
	189,788

	
	79,074,539
	
	74,353,422

	Allowance for possible loan losses
	(1,623,716)
	
	(1,562,448)

	
	￦
77,450,823
	
	￦
72,790,974


(2) 
Loans in local currency as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 classified by borrower type were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Loans to enterprises
	
	
	
	

	
Working capital
	
	￦
30,521,063
	
	￦
29,942,709

	
Facilities and equipment
	
	3,715,193
	
	3,512,651

	
	
	34,236,256
	
	33,455,360

	Loans to households
	
	
	
	

	
General purpose
	
	24,750,173
	
	23,789,986

	
Housing
	
	4,445,276
	
	3,402,319

	
Other
	
	82,865
	
	77,852

	
	
	29,278,314
	
	27,270,157

	Loans to public sector and other
	
	
	
	

	
Working capital
	
	
760,409
	
	
507,881

	
Facilities and equipment
	
	210,621
	
	309,117

	
Inter-bank
	
	451,454
	
	340,430

	
	
	1,422,484
	
	1,157,428

	
	
	￦
64,937,054
	
	￦
61,882,945


(3) 
Loans to the financial institutions as of December 31, 2004 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	Amount

	Banks
	
	￦
2,035,684

	Credit card & loan companies
	
	391,986

	Other
	
	255,847

	
	
	￦
2,683,517


(4) 
Loans in local currency, by industry, as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	2004
	
	2003

	
	Amount
	
	% of total
	
	Amount
	
	% of total

	Manufacturing
	￦
11,083,030
	
	17.1
	
	￦
10,185,026
	
	16.5

	Real estate and leasing
	7,650,323
	
	11.8
	
	6,399,000
	
	10.3

	Wholesale and retail
	5,465,402
	
	8.4
	
	5,131,258
	
	8.3

	Construction
	3,151,778
	
	4.8
	
	4,106,714
	
	6.6

	Lodging and restaurant
	2,535,701
	
	3.9
	
	2,805,094
	
	4.5

	Transportation
	887,258
	
	1.4
	
	981,098
	
	1.6

	Financial industry
	1,003,138
	
	1.5
	
	781,969
	
	1.3

	Other
	3,882,110
	
	6.0
	
	4,222,719
	
	6.8

	
	35,658,740
	
	54.9
	
	34,612,878
	
	55.9

	Loans to household
	29,278,314
	
	45.1
	
	27,270,067
	
	44.1

	
	￦
64,937,054
	
	100.0
	
	￦
61,882,945
	
	100.0


(5) 
Loans and the confirmed acceptances and guarantees (“Confirmed A&G”) in foreign currencies, by country, as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	(2004)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Country

	
	Loans in foreign 

currencies
	
	% of total
	
	Confirmed

A&G
	
	% of total

	Korea
	
	￦
4,704,015
	
	69.8
	
	￦
807,059
	
	94.3

	U.S.A.
	
	909,764
	
	13.5
	
	2,530
	
	0.3

	Indonesia
	
	285,725
	
	4.2
	
	9,689
	
	1.1

	Japan
	
	176,871
	
	2.6
	
	-
	
	-

	China
	
	51,098
	
	0.8
	
	-
	
	-

	Russia
	
	15,657
	
	0.2
	
	-
	
	-

	Netherlands
	
	10,315
	
	0.2
	
	-
	
	-

	Thailand
	
	1,696
	
	-
	
	22,876
	
	2.7

	Other
	
	586,585
	
	8.7
	
	13,405
	
	1.6

	
	
	￦
6,741,726
	
	100.0
	
	￦
855,559
	
	100.0


	(2003)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Country
	
	Loans in foreign

currencies
	
	% of total
	
	Confirmed A&G
	
	% of total

	Korea
	
	￦
5,436,718
	
	80.5
	
	￦
1,284,091
	
	97.1

	U.S.A
	
	436,999
	
	6.6
	
	1,145
	
	0.1

	Japan
	
	363,663
	
	5.4
	
	-
	
	-

	Russia
	
	237,164
	
	3.5
	
	-
	
	-

	Indonesia
	
	155,700
	
	2.3
	
	756
	
	0.1

	China
	
	90,605
	
	1.3
	
	329
	
	-

	Netherlands
	
	20,626
	
	0.3
	
	-
	
	-

	Thailand
	
	2,343
	
	-
	
	23,956
	
	1.7

	Other
	
	6,635
	
	0.1
	
	12,567
	
	1.0

	
	
	￦
6,750,453
	
	100.0
	
	￦
1,322,844
	
	100.0


(6) 
The following tables show the details of the loans under the asset quality classification guideline as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 (Unit: Korean won in billions):

	(2004)
	
	

	Account
	
	Normal
	
	Precautionary
	
	Substandard
	
	Doubtful
	
	Loss
	
	Total

	Loans in local currency
	
	￦
61,575
	
	￦
1,577
	
	￦
789
	
	￦
254
	
	￦
290
	
	￦
64,485

	Loans in foreign currencies
	
	5,896
	
	239
	
	94
	
	8
	
	13
	
	6,250

	Bills bought in local currency
	
	91
	
	125
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	216

	Bills bought in foreign currencies (*)
	
	3,574
	
	33
	
	57
	
	1
	
	93
	
	3,758

	Advances for customers
	
	2
	
	-
	
	9
	
	4
	
	13
	
	28

	Credit card accounts
	
	1,570
	
	186
	
	-
	
	63
	
	52
	
	1,871

	Privately placed bonds
	
	307
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	307

	Factoring Receivables 
	
	19
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	19

	Investment in Direct Financing Leases 
	
	94
	
	22
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	116

	Suspense receivable for credit
	
	-
	
	1
	
	-
	
	5
	
	11
	
	17

	
	
	￦
73,128
	
	￦
2,183
	
	￦
949
	
	￦
335
	
	￦
472
	
	￦
77,067


	(2003)
	
	

	Account
	
	Normal
	
	Precautionary
	
	Substandard
	
	Doubtful
	
	Loss
	
	Total

	Loans in local currency
	
	￦
59,493
	
	￦
819
	
	￦
804
	
	￦
198
	
	￦
228
	
	￦
61,542

	Loans in foreign currencies 
	
	5,800
	
	494
	
	95
	
	48
	
	11
	
	6,448

	Bills bought in local currency
	
	284
	
	175
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	459

	Bills bought in foreign currencies (*)
	
	3,386
	
	147
	
	28
	
	102
	
	5
	
	3,668

	Advances for customers
	
	1
	
	7
	
	57
	
	2
	
	6
	
	73

	Credit card accounts
	
	1
	
	-
	
	-
	
	1
	
	2
	
	4

	Privately placed bonds
	
	256
	
	222
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	478

	Loans for debt-equity swap
	
	-
	
	-
	
	31
	
	-
	
	-
	
	31

	Investment in direct financing leases 
	
	154
	
	36
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	190

	Suspense receivable for credit
	
	3
	
	-
	
	1
	
	4
	
	4
	
	12

	
	
	￦
69,378
	
	￦
1,900
	
	￦
1,016
	
	￦
355
	
	￦
256
	
	￦
72,905


(*)
Including accounts receivable relating to bills bought in foreign currencies as of December 31, 2004 and 2003.
Reconciliations of the loans subject to loss provisions with total loans were as follows (Unit: Korean won in billions): 

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Total loans
	
	￦
79,075
	
	￦
74,353

	Less: Not subject to loss provisions
	
	
	
	

	Inter-bank loans 
	
	(944)
	
	(642)

	Bonds purchased under resale agreements 
	
	(37)
	
	(130)

	Call loans
	
	(1,055)
	
	(700)

	Add: Subject to loss provisions for assets other than loans
	
	
	
	

	Suspense receivable as credit 
	
	17
	
	12

	Receivables related to non-performing bills bought 
	
	11
	
	12

	The loans subject to loss provisions
	
	￦
77,067
	
	￦
72,905


(7) 
Allowances for possible loan losses under the asset quality classification as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in billions):

	(2004)
	
	

	Account
	
	Normal
	
	Precautionary
	
	Substandard
	
	Doubtful
	
	Loss
	
	Total

	Loans in local currency
	
	￦
382
	
	￦
144
	
	￦
175
	
	￦
135
	
	￦
290
	
	￦
1,126

	Loans in foreign currencies
	
	31
	
	48
	
	32
	
	4
	
	14
	
	129

	Bills bought in local currency
	
	1
	
	28
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	29

	Bills bought in foreign currencies 
	
	18
	
	5
	
	28
	
	-
	
	93
	
	144

	Advances for customers
	
	-
	
	-
	
	2
	
	2
	
	13
	
	17

	Credit card accounts
	
	16
	
	22
	
	-
	
	38
	
	52
	
	128

	Privately placed bonds
	
	2
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	2

	Factoring receivables
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-

	Investment in direct financing leases
	
	-
	
	1
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	1

	Suspense receivable for credit
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	3
	
	10
	
	13

	
	
	￦
450
	
	￦
248
	
	￦
237
	
	￦
182
	
	￦
472
	
	1,589

	Accounts receivable and other
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	35

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	￦
1,624


	(2003)
	
	

	Account
	
	Normal
	
	Precautionary
	
	Substandard
	
	Doubtful
	
	Loss
	
	Total

	Loans in local currency
	
	￦
372
	
	￦
91
	
	￦
213
	
	￦
110
	
	￦
228
	
	￦
1,014

	Loans in foreign currencies
	
	49
	
	106
	
	31
	
	35
	
	11
	
	232

	Bills bought in local currency
	
	2
	
	70
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	72

	Bills bought in foreign currencies
	
	20
	
	23
	
	8
	
	68
	
	5
	
	124

	Advances for customers
	
	-
	
	-
	
	25
	
	1
	
	6
	
	32

	Credit card accounts
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	1
	
	1
	
	2

	Privately placed bonds
	
	1
	
	42
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	43

	Loans for debt-equity swap
	
	-
	
	-
	
	15
	
	-
	
	-
	
	15

	Investment in direct financing leases
	
	1
	
	2
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	3

	Suspense receivable for credit
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	2
	
	5
	
	7

	
	
	￦
445
	
	￦
334
	
	￦
292
	
	￦
217
	
	￦
256
	
	1,544

	Accounts receivable and other
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	18

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	￦
1,562


(8) 
Changes in the allowance for possible loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 are shown below (Unit: Korean won in billions).
	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Beginning balance
	
	￦
1,562
	
	￦
1,670

	Provision of allowance for bad debts
	
	676
	
	528

	Increase from merger with Woori Card
	
	313
	
	-

	Repurchase of non-performing loans
	
	124
	
	314

	Collection of previously written-off loans
	
	163
	
	117

	Write-off
	
	(776)
	
	(363)

	Loans swapped to the equity securities
	
	(254)
	
	(536)

	Other
	
	(184)
	
	(168)

	Ending balance
	
	￦
1,624
	
	￦
1,562


(9) 
The allowance ratio for possible loan losses against the loans subject to loss provisions as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 are as follows (Unit: Korean won in billions):

	
	
	The loans subject to loss provision
	
	Allowance

for possible

loan losses
	
	Ratio (%)

	December 31, 2004
	
	￦
77,067
	
	￦
1,589
	
	2.1

	December 31, 2003
	
	72,905
	
	1,544
	
	2.1

	December 31, 2002
	
	60,451
	
	1,529
	
	2.5


(10) 

Material loans sold in 2004 are as follows (Unit: Korean won in billions):

	Buyer
	
	Nominal amount of sold loans
	
	Allowances
	
	Gain (Loss) on

sales of loans

	KAMCO
	
	￦
744
	
	￦
75
	
	￦
(167)

	Woori SB 1st Asset Securitization Specialty Co., Ltd.
	
	296
	
	
97
	
	
8

	Woori SB 2nd Asset Securitization Specialty Co., Ltd.
	
	200
	
	90
	
	14

	ABN-AMRO Bank
	
	62
	
	11
	
	8

	Lippo Securities Ltd.
	
	39
	
	8
	
	3

	Deutsche Bank 
	
	5
	
	2
	
	1


6. RESTRUCTURED LOANS

(1) Material debt restructurings in 2004 are as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Debt restructuring components

	
	
	Category

	
	Before

restructuring
	
	Equity

securities
	
	Rescheduling

	Hanil Synthetic Fiber Co., Ltd.
	
	Court receivership
	
	￦
252,937
	
	￦
83,582
	
	￦
169,355

	LG Card
	
	Workout programs
	
	351,800
	
	351,800
	
	-

	Daerim Corporation
	
	Workout programs
	
	12,741
	
	12,741
	
	-

	SK Networks
	
	Workout programs
	
	8,880
	
	8,880
	
	-

	New Core Co., Ltd.
	
	Court receivership
	
	4,022
	
	4,022
	
	-

	Dooray Metech Co., Ltd.
	
	Court receivership
	
	3,474
	
	3,474
	
	-

	Woobo Telecom
	
	Court mediation
	
	814
	
	-
	
	814

	Seryong Industries
	
	Court mediation
	
	506
	
	-
	
	506

	NTI Korea Co., Ltd.
	
	Court mediation
	
	474
	
	-
	
	474

	Meridian Co., Ltd.
	
	Court mediation
	
	395
	
	-
	
	395

	United 3
	
	Court mediation
	
	247
	
	-
	
	247

	Muhan Investment Co., Ltd.
	
	Workout programs
	
	238
	
	238
	
	-

	Shinheung Dyeing Co., Ltd.
	
	Court mediation
	
	236
	
	-
	
	236

	Other
	
	Court receivership and court mediation
	
	262
	
	33
	
	229


7. FIXED ASSETS

(1) Fixed assets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	2004
	
	2003

	Tangible assets
	￦
2,090,279
	
	￦
2,063,839

	Less: accumulated depreciation
	
(472,952)
	
	
(426,936)

	Less: accumulated impairment loss
	
(1,003)
	
	
(1,138)

	Intangible assets
	
183,827
	
	
120,655

	Non-business use property
	
515
	
	
515

	Less: valuation allowance
	
(332)
	
	
(289)

	
	￦
1,800,334
	
	￦
1,756,646


(2) Tangible assets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions):
	(2004)
	
	Acquisition cost
	
	Accumulated depreciation
	
	Accumulated impairment loss
	
	Carrying

amount

	Land
	
	￦
964,582
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
(875)
	
	￦
963,707

	Buildings
	
	711,381
	
	(163,751)
	
	(128)
	
	547,502

	Equipment and furniture
	
	280,437
	
	(219,506)
	
	-
	
	60,931

	Leasehold improvements
	
	133,877
	
	(89,695)
	
	-
	
	44,182

	Construction in progress
	
	2
	
	-
	
	-
	
	2

	
	
	￦
2,090,279
	
	￦
(472,952)
	
	￦
(1,003)
	
	￦
1,616,324


	(2003)
	
	Acquisition cost
	
	Accumulated depreciation
	
	Accumulated impairment loss
	
	Carrying amount

	Land
	
	￦
982,875
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
(992)
	
	￦
981,883

	Buildings
	
	714,416
	
	(145,983)
	
	(146)
	
	568,287

	Equipment and furniture
	
	266,193
	
	(208,357)
	
	-
	
	57,836

	Leasehold improvements
	
	99,912
	
	(72,596)
	
	-
	
	27,316

	Construction in progress
	
	443
	
	-
	
	-
	
	443

	
	
	￦
2,063,839
	
	￦
(426,936)
	
	￦
(1,138)
	
	￦
1,635,765


The published value of land pursuant to the Laws on Disclosure of Land Price and Valuation of Land was ￦838,605 million and ￦767,032 million as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

(3) Changes in tangible assets in 2004 are as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	Balance at Jan. 1, 2004
	
	Purchases
	
	Merger
	
	Disposals
	
	Depreciation
	
	Other
	
	Balance at Dec. 31, 2004

	Land
	
	￦
981,883
	
	￦
1,270
	
	￦
1,254
	
	￦
(20,453)
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
(247)
	
	￦
963,707

	Buildings
	
	568,287
	
	47,868
	
	1,006
	
	(44,995)
	
	(23,825)
	
	(839)
	
	547,502

	Equipment and furniture
	
	57,836
	
	37,626
	
	2,095
	
	(931)
	
	(34,873)
	
	(822)
	
	60,931

	Leasehold improvements
	
	27,316
	
	34,111
	
	2,235
	
	(842)
	
	(18,263)
	
	(375)
	
	44,182

	Construction in progress
	
	443
	
	360
	
	-
	
	(800)
	
	 -
	
	 (1)
	
	2

	
	
	￦
1,635,765
	
	￦
121,235
	
	￦
6,590
	
	￦
(68,021)
	
	￦
(76,961)
	
	￦
(2,284)
	
	￦
1,616,324


(4) Intangible assets as of December 31, 2004 consisted of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions): 

	
	
	Acquisition cost
	
	Accumulated amortization
	
	Accumulated impairment loss
	
	Carrying amount

	Goodwill
	
	￦
21,431
	
	￦
(4)
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
21,427

	Software
	
	125
	
	(65)
	
	-
	
	60

	Industrial property right
	
	99
	
	(20)
	
	-
	
	79

	Development costs 
	
	140,332
	
	(17,209)
	
	(5,247)
	
	117,876

	Other intangible assets
	
	57,060
	
	(12,675)
	
	-
	
	44,385

	
	
	￦
219,047
	
	￦
(29,973)
	
	￦
(5,247)
	
	￦
183,827


(5)
Changes in intangible assets in 2004 are as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	Balance at Jan. 1, 2004
	
	Purchases
	
	Merger
	
	Amortization
	
	Impairment

loss
	
	Other
	
	Balance at Dec. 31, 2004

	Goodwill
	
	￦
23,577
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
(4)
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
(2,146)
	
	￦
21,427

	Software
	
	78
	
	6
	
	-
	
	(24)
	
	
-
	
	-
	
	60

	Industrial property right
	
	19
	
	65
	
	7
	
	(9)
	
	-
	
	(3)
	
	79

	Development costs 
	
	84,074
	
	49,508
	
	10
	
	(9,573)
	
	(5,247)
	
	(896)
	
	117,876

	Other intangible assets
	
	12,907
	
	40,464
	
	-
	
	(8,713)
	
	-
	
	(275)
	
	44,385

	
	
	￦
120,655
	
	￦
90,043
	
	￦
17
	
	￦
(18,323)
	
	￦ 
(5,247)
	
	￦
(3,320)
	
	￦
183,827


8. OTHER ASSETS

(1) Other assets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	2004
	
	2003

	Guarantee deposits
	￦
836,992
	
	￦
806,332

	Accounts receivable-other
	1,616,303
	
	3,083,101

	Less: Present value discounts
	(41,666)
	
	(85,187)

	Accrued income
	325,850
	
	454,503

	Prepaid expenses
	18,617
	
	6,974

	Deferred income tax assets
	707,947
	
	211,351

	Derivatives
	1,403,926
	
	524,936

	CMA
	322,254
	
	111,481

	Operating lease properties
	2,496
	
	22,633

	Less: Accumulated depreciation
	(2,149)
	
	(21,779)

	Less: Allowance for loss on disposal of operating lease properties
	(2)
	
	(10)

	Domestic exchange settlements debits
	202,957
	
	252,640

	Sundry assets
	227,946
	
	294,529

	
	￦
5,621,471
	
	￦
5,661,504


(2)
Sundry assets included in other assets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Suspense receivables
	
	￦
96,185
	
	￦
27,591

	Accounts receivable for disposition of properties
	
	4,944
	
	6,898

	Less: Present value discount
	
	(473)
	
	(709)

	Deposit money to court
	
	26,464
	
	19,793

	Stationary and office supplies
	
	4,331
	
	4,642

	Receivable spot exchange
	
	32,971
	
	33,567

	Income tax receivables
	
	61,324
	
	197,939

	Other
	
	2,200
	
	4,808

	
	
	￦
227,946
	
	￦
294,529


9. INSURED ASSETS

Assets insured as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Type of insurance
	
	Insured assets 
	
	Net book value
	
	Insured amount
	
	Net book value
	
	Insured amount

	Property composite
	
	Buildings
	
	￦
564,733
	
	￦
567,389
	
	￦
582,383
	
	￦
570,119

	
	
	Equipment and furniture
	
	52,827
	
	43,421
	
	51,646
	
	55,160

	Fire


	
	Non-business use properties
	
	226
	
	226
	
	226
	
	226

	
	
	Tangible assets in overseas branches
	
	4,397
	
	14,885
	
	19,003
	
	18,615

	
	
	Equipment and furniture
	
	796
	
	4,469
	
	-
	
	-

	
	
	Leasehold improvements
	
	2,819
	
	3,131
	
	-
	
	-

	
	
	
	
	￦
625,798
	
	￦
633,521
	
	￦
653,258
	
	￦
644,120


In addition, the Bank also had theft and casualty insurance coverage on leasehold properties.

10. COLLATERALIZED ASSETS

Assets provided to others as collateral as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	Secured parties
	
	Collateralized

assets
	
	2004
	
	2003
	
	Purpose

	BOK
	
	Securities
	
	￦
4,816,950
	
	￦
4,169,750
	
	Limit on total loan exposure, settlement risk and other

	Sumitomo Bank and other
	
	Securities
	
	180,000
	
	1,264,280
	
	Bond sold under repurchase agreements in foreign currencies

	Lehman Brothers and other
	
	Due from banks and securities
	
	129,311
	
	387,557
	
	Collateral for credit derivative and other

	Dongwon Securities and other
	
	Securities
	
	97,966
	
	28,600
	
	Margin account for futures

	Woori Card
	
	Securities
	
	-
	
	4,000
	
	Collateral for corporate credit card

	FRB
	
	Securities
	
	3,131
	
	3,593
	
	Collateral for FRB Discount Window

	First Tennessee National Bank
	
	Securities
	
	5,219
	
	11,978
	
	Collateral for credit line

	
	
	
	
	￦
5,232,577
	
	￦
5,869,758
	
	


11. DEPOSITS
(1) Deposits as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	2004
	
	2003

	Deposits in local currency
	￦
63,462,645
	
	￦
65,599,954

	Deposits in foreign currencies
	3,333,829
	
	3,725,241

	Certificates of deposits
	5,737,831
	
	3,802,836

	Notes payable deposits
	1,130,780
	
	783,440

	CMA deposits
	312,471
	
	251,974

	
	￦
73,977,556
	
	￦
74,163,445


(2) Deposits in local currency as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Demand deposits:
	
	
	
	

	Checking deposits
	
	￦
731,687
	
	￦
272,434

	Household checking deposits
	
	38,877
	
	42,961

	Temporary deposits
	
	2,115,067
	
	2,403,992

	Passbook deposits
	
	1,180,990
	
	1,901,730

	Treasury deposits and other
	
	516,502
	
	1,093,416

	
	
	4,583,123
	
	5,714,533

	Savings deposits:
	
	
	
	

	Savings deposits
	
	12,564,210
	
	12,822,253

	Corporate free savings deposits
	
	9,269,657
	
	10,398,447

	Time deposits
	
	29,281,683
	
	29,139,234

	Installment savings deposits
	
	3,608,077
	
	3,720,417

	Workers’ preferential savings deposits and other
	
	1,660,742
	
	1,666,829

	
	
	56,384,369
	
	57,747,180

	Mutual installment deposits
	
	6,296
	
	14,974

	Mutual installment deposits for housing
	
	542,812
	
	536,731

	Monetary trust
	
	1,946,045
	
	1,586,536

	
	
	￦
63,462,645
	
	￦
65,599,954


(3) Deposits in foreign currencies as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions, US dollars in thousands):

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	
	
	U.S. dollars or their equivalent
	
	Korean won equivalent
	
	U.S. dollars or their equivalent
	
	Korean won equivalent

	Current deposits
	
	$
420,330
	
	￦
438,740
	
	$
320,959
	
	￦
384,445

	Passbook deposits
	
	1,112,789
	
	1,161,529
	
	808,303
	
	968,185

	Notice deposits
	
	255
	
	266
	
	188
	
	225

	Time deposits
	
	1,625,854
	
	1,697,066
	
	1,838,495
	
	2,202,149

	Temporary deposits
	
	23,820
	
	24,863
	
	27,132
	
	32,499

	Other deposits
	
	10,888
	
	11,365
	
	13,750
	
	16,470

	Off-shore deposits
	
	-
	
	-
	
	101,242
	
	121,268

	
	
	$
3,193,936
	
	￦
3,333,829
	
	$
3,110,069
	
	￦
3,725,241


12. BORROWINGS
(1) Borrowings as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	2004
	
	2003

	Borrowings in local currency
	￦
3,881,187
	
	￦
3,742,427

	Borrowings in foreign currencies
	4,735,747
	
	4,440,587

	Call money
	663,924
	
	342,299

	Bonds sold under repurchase agreements
	85,932
	
	976,752

	Bills sold
	50,528
	
	87,452

	
	￦
9,417,318
	
	￦
9,589,517


(2) Borrowings in local currency as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	
	
	Interest rate (%)
	
	
	
	

	 
	
	Creditor
	
	2004
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Borrowings from BOK
	
	BOK
	
	2.0
	
	￦
848,110
	
	￦
886,344

	Borrowings from Government Fund
	
	Small Business Corporation
	
	3.6~4.9
	
	297,660
	
	253,956

	
	
	Ministry of Labor
	
	0.0~4.5
	
	230,784
	
	138,832

	
	
	Ministry of Information and Communication
	
	2.1
	
	198,317
	
	100,726

	
	
	Ministry of Commerce, Industry and Energy
	
	4.1~4.5
	
	120,399
	
	170,009

	
	
	Korea Energy Management Corporation
	
	1.5
	
	79,263
	
	89,668

	
	
	Korea Environment & Resources Corporation
	
	4.0
	
	34,505
	
	25,280

	
	
	Environment Management Corporation and other
	
	0.0~6.0
	
	444,331
	
	474,545

	
	
	
	
	
	
	1,405,259
	
	1,253,016

	Borrowings from municipal governments
	
	Seoul municipal government
	
	0.0~4.7
	
	690,504
	
	596,013

	
	
	Pusan municipal government and other
	
	0.0~8.0
	
	406,012
	
	415,785

	
	
	
	
	
	
	1,096,516
	
	1,011,798

	Other
	
	Small Business Corporation
	
	3.6~4.9
	
	291,936
	
	248,646

	
	
	Korea International Trade Association and other
	
	2.3~5.0
	
	222,075
	
	317,332

	
	
	
	
	
	
	514,011
	
	565,978

	General borrowing
	
	Korea First Bank
	
	7.4
	
	17,291
	
	25,291

	
	
	
	
	
	
	￦
3,881,187
	
	￦
3,742,427


(3) Borrowings in foreign currencies as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions, U.S. dollars in thousands):

	
	
	
	
	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	
	
	Creditor
	
	Interest rate (%)

2004
	
	U.S. dollars or their equivalent
	
	Korean won equivalent
	
	U.S. dollars 

or their equivalent
	
	Korean won equivalent

	Overdrafts
	
	Korea Exchange Bank and other
	
	-
	
	$
425,401
	
	￦
444,034
	
	$
359,394
	
	￦
430,482

	Foreign financial institutions
	
	BNP Paribas HK and other
	
	0.2~7.3
	
	3,261,303
	
	3,404,148
	
	2,512,568
	
	3,009,554

	Domestic banks
	
	Kookmin Bank and other
	
	1.4~3.0
	
	850,321
	
	887,565
	
	835,324
	
	1,000,551

	
	
	
	
	
	
	$
4,537,025
	　
	￦
4,735,747
	　
	$
3,707,286
	　
	￦
4,440,587


(4) Call money, bond sold under repurchase agreements and bills sold as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	Interest rate (%)
	
	
	
	

	
	
	2004
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Call money:
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Call money in local currency
	
	3.2
	
	￦
527,000
	
	￦
-

	Call money in foreign currencies
	
	0.2~4.7
	
	136,924
	
	342,299

	
	
	
	
	￦
663,924
	
	￦
342,299

	Bond sold under repurchase agreements:
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Bond sold under repurchase agreements in local currency
	
	2.0~3.1
	
	￦
7,647
	
	￦
19,050

	Bond sold under repurchase agreements in foreign currencies
	
	1.8
	
	78,285
	
	957,702

	
	
	
	
	￦
85,932
	
	￦
976,752

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Bills sold
	
	2.0~3.4
	
	￦
50,528
	
	￦
87,452


13. DEBENTURES
(1) Debentures as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	2004
	
	2003

	Debentures in local currency
	￦
7,687,351
	
	￦
5,027,834

	Less: discounts
	
(26,987)
	
	
(34,553)

	Debentures in foreign currencies
	
3,099,476
	
	
2,805,143

	Less: discounts
	
(18,289)
	
	
(18,268)

	
	￦
10,741,551
	
	￦
7,780,156


(2) Debentures in local currency as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	
	
	
	
	Interest rate (%)
	
	
	
	

	Type
	
	Issued
	
	Expiration
	
	2004
	
	2004
	
	2003

	General debentures
	
	2002. 1
	
	2005. 1
	
	4.3
	
	￦
148,000
	
	￦
-

	〃
	
	2002. 2
	
	2005. 2
	
	3.6
	
	150,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2002. 5
	
	2004. 5
	
	6.2
	
	-
	
	50,000

	〃
	
	2002. 3
	
	2005. 3
	
	4.0
	
	70,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2002. 3
	
	2005. 3
	
	3.5
	
	70,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2002 .6
	
	2005. 6
	
	6.7
	
	40,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2002. 8
	
	2005. 8
	
	6.0
	
	60,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2002. 9
	
	2007. 9
	
	6.1
	
	13,000
	
	13,000

	〃
	
	2003. 1
	
	2004. 1
	
	4.7
	
	-
	
	150,000

	〃
	
	2003. 1
	
	2004. 1
	
	4.6
	
	-
	
	100,000

	〃
	
	2003. 1
	
	2006. 1
	
	5.6
	
	100,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2003. 2
	
	2004. 2
	
	4.5
	
	-
	
	200,000

	〃
	
	2003. 2
	
	2006. 2
	
	6.0
	
	50,000
	
	50,000

	〃
	
	2003. 3
	
	2004. 3
	
	4.4
	
	-
	
	100,000

	〃
	
	2003. 3
	
	2004. 3
	
	4.6
	
	-
	
	50,000

	〃
	
	2003. 4
	
	2004. 4
	
	4.6
	
	-
	
	100,000

	〃
	
	2003. 4
	
	2008. 4
	
	5.1
	
	80,000
	
	80,000

	〃
	
	2003. 5
	
	2006. 5
	
	4.9
	
	70,000
	
	70,000

	〃
	
	2003. 5
	
	2004. 5
	
	4.5
	
	-
	
	60,000

	〃
	
	2003. 5
	
	2008. 5
	
	5.0
	
	50,000
	
	50,000

	〃
	
	2003. 6
	
	2006. 6
	
	4.9
	
	50,000
	
	50,000

	〃
	
	2003. 8
	
	2004. 8
	
	4.2
	
	-
	
	50,000

	〃
	
	2003. 9
	
	2004. 9
	
	4.0
	
	-
	
	110,000

	〃
	
	2003. 9
	
	2005. 9
	
	4.3
	
	230,000
	
	230,000

	〃
	
	2003.10
	
	2004.10
	
	3.9
	
	-
	
	310,000

	〃
	
	2003.10
	
	2004.10
	
	4.0
	
	-
	
	150,000

	〃
	
	2003.10
	
	2004.10
	
	4.1
	
	-
	
	40,000

	〃
	
	2003.10
	
	2005.10
	
	4.6
	
	80,000
	
	80,000

	〃
	
	2003.10
	
	2006.10
	
	4.8
	
	240,000
	
	240,000

	〃
	
	2003.11
	
	2006.11
	
	5.1
	
	370,000
	
	370,000

	〃
	
	2003.11
	
	2005.11
	
	5.1
	
	120,000
	
	120,000

	〃
	
	2003.11
	
	2006.11
	
	5.2
	
	110,000
	
	110,000

	〃
	
	2003.12
	
	2004.12
	
	4.6
	
	-
	
	150,000

	〃
	
	2003.12
	
	2006.12
	
	5.5
	
	70,000
	
	70,000

	〃
	
	2003.12
	
	2008.12
	
	5.7
	
	20,000
	
	20,000

	〃
	
	2003.12
	
	2004.12
	
	4.7
	
	-
	
	40,000

	〃
	
	2003.12
	
	2006.12
	
	5.2
	
	130,000
	
	130,000

	〃
	
	2003.12
	
	2008.12
	
	5.4
	
	100,000
	
	100,000

	〃
	
	2003.12
	
	2008.12
	
	5.5
	
	50,000
	
	50,000

	〃
	
	2004. 1
	
	2006. 1
	
	5.1
	
	60,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 1
	
	2005. 1
	
	4.6
	
	90,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 1
	
	2006. 1
	
	5.0
	
	70,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 1
	
	2005. 1
	
	4.5
	
	150,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 2
	
	2005. 2
	
	4.5
	
	150,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 2
	
	2005. 2
	
	4.4
	
	40,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 2
	
	2005. 2
	
	4.3
	
	90,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 3
	
	2005. 3
	
	4.3
	
	90,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 3
	
	2005. 3
	
	4.2
	
	130,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 3
	
	2006. 3
	
	4.7
	
	60,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 3
	
	2005. 3
	
	4.1
	
	300,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 3
	
	2006. 3
	
	4.6
	
	100,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 3
	
	2014. 3
	
	6.0
	
	50,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 4
	
	2005. 4
	
	4.1
	
	410,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 4
	
	2014. 4
	
	6.2
	
	50,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 4
	
	2014. 4
	
	6.3
	
	50,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 4
	
	2005. 4
	
	4.0
	
	20,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 5
	
	2005. 5
	
	4.0
	
	400,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 5
	
	2006. 5
	
	4.5
	
	30,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 5
	
	2006. 5
	
	4.3
	
	50,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 6
	
	2005. 6
	
	4.1
	
	50,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 7
	
	2005. 7
	
	4.0
	
	160,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 7
	
	2014. 7
	
	5.4
	
	50,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 8
	
	2005. 8
	
	3.9
	
	50,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 8
	
	2005. 8
	
	3.6
	
	50,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 8
	
	2005. 8
	
	3.5
	
	20,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 8
	
	2006. 8
	
	3.7
	
	100,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 9
	
	2006. 9
	
	3.7
	
	50,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004.10
	
	2006.10
	
	3.6
	
	250,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004.11
	
	2005.11
	
	91CD+0.2
	
	70,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004.11
	
	2006.11
	
	3.6
	
	50,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004.12
	
	2014.12
	
	4.2
	
	100,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004.12
	
	2014.12
	
	4.3
	
	50,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004.12
	
	2007.12
	
	3.5
	
	300,000
	
	-

	Convertible debentures (*)
	
	2002. 9
	
	2012. 9
	
	4.0
	
	-
	
	150,000

	〃
	
	2002.10
	
	2012.10
	
	4.0
	
	-
	
	200,000

	〃
	
	2002.11
	
	2012.11
	
	4.0
	
	-
	
	250,000

	Debentures with warrants
	
	1999.12
	
	2004.12
	
	12.5
	
	-
	
	24,833

	Subordinated debentures
	
	1997.12
	
	2004.12
	
	13.5
	
	-
	
	50,000

	〃
	
	2000. 3
	
	2005. 6
	
	10.2
	
	158,109
	
	158,109

	〃
	
	2000. 3
	
	2005. 6
	
	10.3
	
	141,891
	
	141,891

	〃
	
	2001. 6
	
	2007. 1
	
	8.3
	
	40,000
	
	40,000

	〃
	
	2001. 6
	
	2007. 3
	
	7.7
	
	98,886
	
	98,886

	〃
	
	2001. 6
	
	2007. 3
	
	7.8
	
	61,114
	
	61,114

	〃
	
	2001.10
	
	2007. 7
	
	6.8
	
	160,000
	
	160,000

	〃
	
	2002. 7
	
	2008. 4
	
	7.2
	
	200,000
	
	200,000

	〃
	
	2003. 6
	
	2008. 9
	
	9.0
	
	46,350
	
	-

	〃
	
	2003.12
	
	2009. 3
	
	8.8
	
	50,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 6
	
	2010. 3
	
	5.5
	
	90,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 6
	
	2014. 6
	
	6.0
	
	180,000
	
	-

	〃
	
	2004. 7
	
	2010. 7
	
	5.4
	
	250,000
	
	-

	Other
	
	1997.12
	
	2000.12
	
	10.5
	
	1
	
	1

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	￦
7,687,351
	
	￦
5,027,834


(*)  ￦600,000 million was repaid as early redemption on March 26, 2004.
(3) Debentures in foreign currencies as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions, US dollars in thousands):

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Type
	
	Issued 
	
	Expiration
	
	Interest rate (%)

2004
	
	U.S. dollars or their equivalent
	
	Korean won equivalent
	
	U.S. dollars or their equivalent
	
	Korean won equivalent

	General debentures
	
	2002.10
	
	2005.10
	
	3.6
	
	$
149,754
	
	￦
156,313
	
	$
151,156 
	
	￦
181,055

	〃
	
	2002.10
	
	2007.10
	
	4.5
	
	149,995
	
	156,565
	
	151,744
	
	181,759

	〃
	
	2003. 9
	
	2008. 9
	
	5.4
	
	504,225
	
	526,310
	
	539,802
	
	646,575

	〃
	
	2003. 1
	
	2006. 1
	
	1.2
	
	223,008
	
	232,776
	
	214,984
	
	257,508

	〃
	
	2003. 1
	
	2008. 1
	
	1.6
	
	193,920
	
	202,414
	
	186,943
	
	223,920

	〃
	
	2004.12
	
	2009.12
	
	4.5
	
	300,813
	
	313,988
	
	-
	
	-

	Subordinated debentures
	
	2000. 2
	
	2010. 3
	
	12.8
	
	554,848
	
	579,150
	
	586,103
	
	702,034

	〃
	
	2000. 2
	
	2010. 3
	
	11.8
	
	302,608
	
	315,862
	
	319,479
	
	382,672

	〃
	
	2003. 6
	
	2013. 7
	
	4.9
	
	193,100
	
	201,558
	
	191,701
	
	229,620

	〃
	
	2004. 2
	
	2014. 3
	
	5.8
	
	397,145
	
	414,540
	
	-
	
	-

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	$
2,969,416
	
	￦
3,099,476
	
	$
2,341,912
	
	￦
2,805,143


14. ACCEPTANCES AND GUARANTEES AND ALLOWANCE FOR POSSIBLE LOSSES

(1) The allowance for possible losses compared to the confirmed acceptances and guarantees (“A&G”) as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in billions):

	
	
	Confirmed

A&G
	
	Allowance for

possible losses
	
	Ratio (%)

	December 31, 2004
	
	￦
1,366
	
	￦
11
	
	0.8

	December 31, 2003
	
	1,792
	
	39
	
	2.2

	December 31, 2002
	
	1,669
	
	32
	
	1.9


(2) 
The classification for confirmed A&G, and allowance for possible losses on A&G as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in billions):

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	
	
	Confirmed

A&G
	
	Allowance for

possible losses
	
	Ratio

(%)
	
	Confirmed

A&G
	
	Allowance for possible losses
	
	Ratio

(%)

	Normal
	
	￦
1,308
	
	￦
-
	
	-
	
	￦
1,675
	
	￦
-
	
	-

	Precautionary
	
	34
	
	-
	
	-
	
	58
	
	-
	
	-

	Substandard
	
	22
	
	10
	
	47.0
	
	14
	
	4
	
	26.8

	Doubtful
	
	2
	
	1
	
	50.0
	
	44
	
	34
	
	77.3

	Loss
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	1
	
	1
	
	100.0

	
	
	￦
1,366
	
	￦
11
	
	0.8
	
	￦
1,792
	
	￦
39
	
	2.2


15. OTHER LIABILITIES

(1)
Other liabilities as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions):
	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Accrued severance benefits 
	
	￦
236,891
	
	￦
159,986

	Less: individual severance insurance deposits 
	
	(193,526)
	
	(121,952)

	Less: Transfers to the National Pension Fund
	
	(46)
	
	(54)

	Allowance for possible losses of acceptances and guarantees
	
	11,441
	
	38,641

	Other allowance
	
	101,890
	
	135,213

	Borrowings from trust accounts
	
	819,835
	
	2,096,224

	Foreign exchange remittance pending
	
	267,392
	
	391,834

	Accounts payable-other
	
	1,269,937
	
	2,251,624

	Accrued expenses
	
	1,314,770
	
	1,302,655

	Unearned revenues
	
	75,303
	
	79,266

	Deposit for letter of guarantees and other
	
	105,694
	
	137,115

	Derivative liabilities
	
	1,637,669
	
	433,963

	Deposits held by agency relationship
	
	656,352
	
	535,344

	Domestic exchange settlement credits
	
	171,533
	
	382,034

	Sundry liabilities
	
	287,105
	
	307,731

	
	
	￦
6,762,240
	
	￦
8,129,624


(2)
Sundry liabilities included in other liabilities as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Suspense payable
	
	￦
39,257
	
	￦
19,721

	Income tax payable
	
	6,858
	
	6,289

	Money in transit from other banks
	
	250
	
	1,500

	Withholding taxes
	
	40,294
	
	44,963

	Giro accounts
	
	139,591
	
	194,039

	Deposits for securities 
subscription 
	
	23,831
	
	12,323

	National Housing Fund
	
	5,850
	
	6,431

	Special Reserves
	
	25,472
	
	20,988

	Other
	
	5,702
	
	1,477

	
	
	￦
287,105
	
	￦
307,731


16. SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY

(1) Common stock

The Bank has 2,000 million authorized shares of common stock (￦5,000 par value), of which 636 million were issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2004.  The Bank is wholly owned by WFH, a subsidiary of KDIC, as of December 31, 2004.

(2) 
Dividends


Cash dividends in 2004 and 2003 were as follows:

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Shares issued and outstanding
	
	635,956,580 shares
	
	570,567,520 shares

	Par value per share
	
	￦5,000
	
	￦5,000 

	Common stock
	
	￦3,179,783 million
	
	￦2,852,838 million 

	Dividend rate 
	
	12.6%
	
	21.7%

	Cash dividend (*)
	
	￦400,017 million
	
	￦620,019 million 

	Net income
	
	￦1,996,043 million
	
	￦1,332,185 million 

	Payout ratio
	
	20.0%
	
	46.5%


(*) including interim dividend of ￦400,017 million and ￦380,381 million in 2004 and 2003, respectively
(3) 
Interim dividend


On September 22, 2004, the Bank paid an interim dividend to WFH pursuant to the resolution of the board of directors, which amounted to ￦400,017 million with dividend per share of ￦629.
17. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Other in other operating expenses in 2004 and 2003 consists of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	2004
	
	2003

	Contribution to funds
	￦
102,181
	
	￦
89,362

	Subsidy for trust accounts
	411
	
	381

	Provision for other allowances
	30,147
	
	-

	Other operating sundry 
	106,812
	
	108,402

	Rent
	62,322
	
	51,297

	Entertainment
	4,465
	
	4,932

	Advertisement
	22,711
	
	22,210

	Outside service fee
	96,923
	
	74,442

	Meals 
	17,747
	
	17,358

	Computer related expenses
	249,990
	
	214,646

	Communications
	14,443
	
	12,397

	Printing
	12,110
	
	11,906

	Repairs and maintenance 
	7,711
	
	7,271

	Power and water
	8,906
	
	8,201

	Clothing
	3,848
	
	5,925

	Night duty
	4,658
	
	4,089

	Vehicle maintenance
	4,314
	
	4,984

	Supplies
	4,557
	
	4,520

	Fuel
	2,206
	
	2,744

	Other
	36,474
	
	56,542

	
	￦
792,936
	
	￦
701,609


18. NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES

Non-operating income and expenses in 2004 and 2003 consist of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Non-operating income:
	
	
	
	

	Gain on disposal of tangible assets
	
	￦
17,498
	
	￦
11,259

	Gain on valuation using the equity method
	
	7,406
	
	14,241

	Gain on disposal of available-for-sale securities
	
	158,947
	
	49,722

	Reversal of available-for-sale securities impairment loss
	
	69,185
	
	183,049

	Gain on disposal of equity securities accounted for using the equity method
	
	9,161
	
	-

	Gain on sales of loans
	
	33,837
	
	919

	Other
	
	77,023
	
	214,000

	
	
	￦
373,057
	
	￦
473,190

	Non-operating expenses:
	
	
	
	

	Loss on disposal of tangible assets
	
	￦
747
	
	￦
484

	Loss on disposal of available-for-sale  securities
	
	4,389
	
	19,910

	Available-for-sale securities impairment loss
	
	24,164
	
	193,527

	Held-to-maturity securities impairment loss
	
	-
	
	27,549

	Intangible assets impairment loss
	
	5,247
	
	37,052

	Loss on sales of loans
	
	179,994
	
	251,729

	Other
	
	30,102
	
	37,163

	
	
	￦
244,643
	
	￦
567,414


19. LOSS ON IMPAIRMENT OF SECURITIES AND REVERSAL OF THE IMPAIRMENT

(1) The impairment loss and reversal of impairment loss for available-for-sale securities in 2004 consist of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	Impairment loss
	
	Reversal of

 impairment loss

	Available-for-sale securities:
	
	
	
	

	LG Card
	
	￦
10,964
	
	￦
-

	Hyundai Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd.
	
	5,415
	
	-

	Shinwoo Co., Ltd.
	
	3,334
	
	-

	Ssangyong Corporation
	
	1,359
	
	-

	Oxycure Co., Ltd.
	
	510
	
	-

	Nanongiga Co., Ltd.
	
	384
	
	

	Midastech Co., Ltd.
	
	222
	
	-

	Kyongeun Mutual Saving & Finance Co., Ltd.
	
	262
	
	-

	Cairo Fareast Bank S.A.E.
	
	1,316
	
	-

	Asset backed securities (“ABS”) issued by Hanvit 7th SPC
	
	-
	
	10,830

	ABS issued by Hanvit 11th SPC
	
	-
	
	52,689

	ABS issued by Credipia SPC
	
	-
	
	3,799

	Hynix
	
	-
	
	894

	Daewoo Motors Co., Ltd.
	
	-
	
	588

	Etronics Corp.
	
	-
	
	129

	Haitai International Inc.
	
	-
	
	57

	Haitai Confectionery & Foods Co., Ltd.
	
	-
	
	199

	Other
	
	398
	
	-

	
	
	￦
24,164
	
	￦
69,185


(2) The impairment loss of development costs in intangible assets amounting to ￦5,247 million and ￦37,052 million is recorded as other non-operating expenses for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

20. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFITS)
(1) Income tax expense (benefits) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Woori Bank-income tax expense(benefits)
	
	￦
(403,944)
	
	￦
97,477

	Subsidiaries-income tax expense
	
	10,687
	
	7,970

	
	
	￦
(393,257)
	
	￦
105,447


(2) As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the deferred tax assets of the Bank were as follows  (Unit: Korean won in millions):
	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Woori Bank
	
	￦
706,735
	
	￦
207,969

	WCI
	
	97
	
	32

	Woori America Bank
	
	695
	
	2,767

	P.T. Bank Woori Indonesia
	
	420
	
	583

	
	
	￦
707,947
	
	￦
211,351


21. ORDINARY INCOME PER SHARE AND NET INCOME PER SHARE

(1) Ordinary income per share and net income per share in 2004 and 2003 are computed as follows:

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Ordinary income (Korean won in millions)
	
	￦
1,996,043
	
	￦
1,332,185

	Net income (Korean won in millions)
	
	1,996,043
	
	1,332,185

	The weighted average number of common shares outstanding (Shares in millions) (*)
	
	620
	
	560

	Ordinary income per share 
(Korean won)
	
	￦
3,221
	
	￦
2,378

	Net income per share (Korean won)
	
	￦
3,221
	
	￦
2,378


(*) The weighted average number of common shares outstanding in 2004 and 2003 were calculated as follows:
	(2004)
	
	
Period

	
	
Shares

	
	Days

	
	
Total


	Beginning
	
	04.1. 1~04. 3.31
	
	570,567,520
	
	91
	
	51,921,644,320

	Merger
	
	04.4. 1~04.12.31
	
	635,956,580
	
	275
	
	174,888,059,500

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	226,809,703,820

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	÷366

	Weighted average number of common shares outstanding
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	619,698,644


	(2003)
	
	
Period

	
	
Shares

	
	Days

	
	
Total


	Beginning
	
	03.1.1~03. 7.31
	
	552,880,000
	
	212
	
	117,210,560,000

	Merger
	
	03.8.1~03.12.31
	
	570,567,520
	
	153
	
	87,296,830,560

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	204,507,390,560

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	÷365

	Weighted average number of common shares outstanding
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	560,294,221


22. MATURITIES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The maturities of assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2004 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in billions):

	
	
	Less than
	
	Less than
	
	Less than
	
	Less than
	
	More than
	
	

	
	
	3 months
	
	6 months
	
	1 year
	
	3 years
	
	3 years
	
	Total

	Due from banks
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Local currency
	
	￦
149
	
	￦
11
	
	￦
80
	
	￦
3
	
	￦
1,620
	
	￦
1,863

	
Foreign currencies
	
	193
	
	31
	
	-
	
	25
	
	16
	
	265

	Held-to-maturity securities
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Local currency
	
	244
	
	-
	
	3,691
	
	125
	
	106
	
	4,166

	
Foreign currencies
	
	182
	
	25
	
	-
	
	21
	
	86
	
	314

	Loans
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Local currency
	
	12,159
	
	12,323
	
	21,207
	
	13,270
	
	5,978
	
	64,937

	
Foreign currencies
	
	2,466
	
	1,120
	
	1,470
	
	807
	
	879
	
	6,742

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Deposits
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Local currency
	
	
15,954
	
	
8,079
	
	
13,369
	
	
2,915
	
	
23,146
	
	
63,463

	
Foreign currencies
	
	1,729
	
	157
	
	937
	
	23
	
	488
	
	3,334

	Borrowings
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Local currency
	
	968
	
	113
	
	261
	
	1,039
	
	1,500
	
	3,881

	
Foreign currencies
	
	2,418
	
	1,607
	
	476
	
	172
	
	63
	
	4,736

	Debentures
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
Local currency
	
	1,478
	
	1,220
	
	840
	
	2,783
	
	1,366
	
	7,687

	
Foreign currencies
	
	-
	
	-
	
	156
	
	390
	
	2,554
	
	3,100


23. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES DENOMINATED IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The followings are significant assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 (Unit: Korean won in millions, U.S. dollars in thousands):
	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	
	
	U.S. dollars

or their

equivalent
	
	Korean won

equivalent
	
	U.S. dollars

or their

equivalent
	
	Korean won

equivalent

	Assets
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Cash
	
	$
150,138
	
	￦
156,714
	
	$
116,558
	
	￦
139,613

	Due from banks 
	
	254,133
	
	265,264
	
	443,746
	
	531,519

	Trading securities 
	
	42,876
	
	44,754
	
	19,917
	
	23,856

	Available-for-sale securities 
	
	989,396
	
	1,032,732
	
	1,107,492
	
	1,326,554

	Held-to-maturity securities
	
	300,451
	
	313,610
	
	219,620
	
	263,061

	Loans 
	
	6,458,830
	
	6,741,726
	
	5,635,710
	
	6,750,453

	Bills bought 
	
	3,590,291
	
	3,747,546
	
	3,052,331
	
	3,656,082

	Call loans
	
	636,223
	
	664,090
	
	584,573
	
	700,201

	Tangible assets-overseas branches
	
	25,216
	
	26,320
	
	48,478
	
	58,067

	Other assets
	
	659,368
	
	688,248
	
	1,721,257
	
	2,061,722

	
	
	$
13,106,922
	
	￦
13,681,004
	
	$
12,949,682
	
	￦
15,511,128

	Liabilities
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Deposits 
	
	$
3,193,935
	
	￦
3,333,829
	
	$
3,110,069
	
	￦
3,725,241

	Borrowings 
	
	4,537,025
	
	4,735,747
	
	3,707,286
	
	4,440,587

	Call money
	
	131,178
	
	136,924
	
	285,773
	
	342,299

	Bonds sold under repurchase agreements
	
	75,000
	
	78,285
	
	799,551
	
	957,702

	Debentures 
	
	2,969,415
	
	3,099,476
	
	2,341,913
	
	2,805,143

	Other liabilities
	
	1,192,360
	
	1,244,585
	
	1,055,338
	
	1,264,084

	
	
	$
12,098,913
	
	￦
12,628,846
	
	$
11,299,930
	
	￦
13,535,056


24. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

(1) Significant balances and transactions with related parties as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004 are as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

1) Assets
	
	
	Cash and

due from

banks
	
	Loans in

foreign

currencies
	
	Call loans
	
	Other

assets
	
	Total

	WFH
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
15,525
	
	￦
15,525

	Trust accounts of the Bank
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	143,559
	
	143,559

	Woori Credit Information Co., Ltd.
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	22
	
	22

	Woori America Bank
	
	3,285
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	3,285

	P.T. Bank Woori Indonesia
	
	30,475
	
	1,044
	
	22,751
	
	303
	
	54,573

	Woori 1st Private Equity Fund
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
9
	
	
9

	Kyongnam Bank
	
	5,000
	
	-
	
	-
	
	79
	
	5,079

	Kwangju Bank
	
	2,593
	
	-
	
	-
	
	5,819
	
	8,412

	Woori Finance Information System Co., Ltd. (“WFIS”)
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	167
	
	167

	Woori Investment Trust Management Co., Ltd. (“WITM”)
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	16
	
	16

	
	
	￦
41,353
	
	￦
1,044
	
	￦
22,751
	
	￦
165,499
	
	￦
230,647


2) Liabilities
	
	
	Deposit in local currency
	
	Borrowings
	
	Other liabilities
	
	Total

	WFH
	
	￦
35,852
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
5,863
	
	￦
41,715

	Trust accounts of the Bank
	
	-
	
	-
	
	284,208
	
	284,208

	Woori Credit Information Co., Ltd.
	
	4,153
	
	-
	
	6,046
	
	10,199

	P.T. Bank Woori Indonesia
	
	-
	
	74,195
	
	194
	
	74,389

	Woori 1st Private Equity Fund
	
	210
	
	-
	
	-
	
	210

	Kyongnam Bank
	
	11,657
	
	29,736
	
	26,782
	
	68,175

	Trust accounts of Kyongnam Bank
	
	-
	
	-
	
	10,001
	
	10,001

	Kwangju Bank
	
	7,983
	
	22,542
	
	38
	
	30,563

	Woori Securities Co., Ltd. 
(“Woori Securities”)
	
	24,087
	
	-
	
	4,801
	
	28,888

	WFIS
	
	8,306
	
	-
	
	26,275
	
	34,581

	Woori F&I Co., Ltd. (“Woori F&I”)
	
	20,208
	
	-
	
	14
	
	20,222

	WFH 2nd SPC
	
	940
	
	-
	
	1
	
	941

	WFH 3rd SPC
	
	4,754
	
	-
	
	5
	
	4,759

	WITM
	
	2,504
	
	-
	
	184
	
	2,688

	Woori CA Asset management
	
	7,742
	
	-
	
	8
	
	7,750

	LG Securities
	
	16,461
	
	52,190
	
	12,558
	
	81,209

	
	
	￦
144,857
	
	￦
178,663
	
	￦
376,978
	
	￦
700,498


3) Revenues
	
	
	Interest

income
	
	Commission

income
	
	Other operating

income
	
	Other

non-
operating

income
	
	Total

	WFH
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
29,633
	
	￦
3,380
	
	￦
33,013

	Trust accounts of the Bank
	
	-
	
	-
	
	43,715
	
	-
	
	43,715

	WCI
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	5,903
	
	5,903

	P.T. Bank Woori Indonesia
	
	1,388
	
	-
	
	97
	
	-
	
	1,485

	Woori 1st Private Equity Fund
	
	-
	
	9
	
	-
	
	-
	
	9

	Kyongnam Bank
	
	2
	
	-
	
	77
	
	-
	
	79

	Woori Card
	
	1,811
	
	15,436
	
	3,726
	
	1,547
	
	22,520

	Woori Securities
	
	8
	
	80
	
	-
	
	390
	
	478

	WFIS
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	4,943
	
	4,943

	
	
	￦
3,209
	
	￦
15,525
	
	￦
77,248
	
	￦
16,163
	
	￦
112,145


4) Expenses
	
	
	Interest

expense
	
	Commission

expense
	
	Other
expenses
	
	Total

	WFH
	
	￦
14,992
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
405
	
	￦
15,397

	Trust accounts of the Bank
	
	9,863
	
	-
	
	-
	
	9,863

	Woori Credit Information Co., Ltd.
	
	102
	
	5,740
	
	-
	
	5,842

	P.T. Bank Woori Indonesia
	
	1,429
	
	-
	
	-
	
	1,429

	Kyongnam Bank 
	
	2,026
	
	21
	
	-
	
	2,047

	Kwangju Bank 
	
	959
	
	-
	
	-
	
	959

	Woori Card
	
	285
	
	-
	
	-
	
	285

	Woori Securities
	
	1,388
	
	944
	
	-
	
	2,332

	WFIS
	
	325
	
	-
	
	226,462
	
	226,787

	Woori F & I Co., Ltd.
	
	520
	
	-
	
	-
	
	520

	WFH 2nd SPC 
	
	222
	
	-
	
	-
	
	222

	WFH 3rd SPC
	
	70
	
	-
	
	-
	
	70

	WFIS
	
	109
	
	272
	
	-
	
	381

	Woori CA Asset Management
	
	175
	
	-
	
	-
	
	175

	
	
	￦
32,465
	
	￦
6,977
	
	￦
226,867
	
	￦
266,309


(2) Significant balances and transactions with related parties as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003 are as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):
1) Assets

	Assets
	
	Cash and

due from

banks
	
	Loans in

foreign
currencies
	
	Call loan
	
	Other

assets
	
	Total

	WFH
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
18,398
	
	￦
18,398

	Trust accounts of the Bank
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
267,096
	
	
267,096

	Kyongnam Bank
	
	
7,015
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
7,015

	Kwangju Bank
	
	
5,805
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
5,805

	Woori Card
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
6,399
	
	
6,399

	Woori America Bank
	
	
3,664
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
3,664

	P.T. Bank Woori Indonesia
	
	
-

	
	
60,639
	
	
23,507
	
	
164
	
	
84,310

	
	
	￦
16,484
	
	￦
60,639
	
	￦
23,507
	
	￦
292,057
	
	￦
392,687


2) Liabilities

	Liabilities
	
	Deposits in

local

currency
	
	Borrowings
	
	Debentures

in local

currency
	
	Other

liabilities
	
	Total

	WFH
	
	￦
322,145
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
600,000
	
	￦
49,340
	
	￦
971,485

	Trust accounts of the Bank
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
322,639
	
	
322,639

	WCI
	
	
2,565
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
5,507
	
	
8,072

	P.T. Bank Woori Indonesia
	
	
-

	
	
68,155
	
	
-

	
	
788
	
	
68,943

	Kyongnam Bank
	
	
3,272
	
	
43,291
	
	
-
	
	
114
	
	
46,677

	Kwangju Bank
	
	
10,637
	
	
27,213
	
	
-
	
	
36
	
	
37,886

	Woori Card
	
	
94,365
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
5,982
	
	
100,347

	Woori Securities
	
	
31,998
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
6,149
	
	
38,147

	WFIS
	
	
8,658
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
21,436
	
	
30,094

	Woori F&I
	
	
4,034
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
9
	
	
4,043

	WITM
	
	
2,502
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
107
	
	
2,609

	Woori CA Asset Management
	
	
8,005
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
6
	
	
8,011

	WFH 2nd SPC
	
	
409
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
11
	
	
420

	WFH 3rd SPC 
	
	
3,031
	
	
-
	
	
-
	
	
3
	
	
3,034

	
	
	￦
491,621
	
	￦
138,659
	
	￦
600,000
	
	￦
412,127
	
	￦
1,642,407


3) Revenues

	
	
	Interest

income
	
	Commission

income
	
	Other operating

income
	
	Other

non-

operating

income
	
	Total

	WFH
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
4,404
	
	￦
1,984
	
	￦
6,388

	Trust accounts of the Bank
	
	-
	
	-
	
	14,955
	
	-
	
	14,955

	WCI
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	248
	
	248

	P.T. Bank Woori Indonesia
	
	1,225
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	1,225

	Woori Card
	
	680
	
	72,286
	
	-
	
	221
	
	73,187

	Woori Securities
	
	30
	
	-
	
	-
	
	354
	
	384

	WFIS
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	5,217
	
	5,217

	
	
	￦
1,935
	
	￦
72,286
	
	￦
19,359
	
	￦
8,024
	
	￦
101,604


4) Expenses
	
	
	Interest

expense
	
	Commission

expense
	
	Other

expenses
	
	Total

	WFH
	
	￦
28,315
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
17,078
	
	￦
45,393

	Trust accounts of the Bank
	
	9,770
	
	-
	
	25,847
	
	35,617

	WCI
	
	83
	
	3,613
	
	6,778
	
	10,474

	P.T. Bank Woori Indonesia
	
	711
	
	-
	
	601
	
	1,312

	Kyongnam Bank 
	
	2,724
	
	26
	
	-
	
	2,750

	Kwangju Bank 
	
	1,044
	
	-
	
	-
	
	1,044

	Woori Investment Bank Co., Ltd.
	
	80
	
	-
	
	-
	
	80

	Woori Card
	
	6,731
	
	-
	
	-
	
	6,731

	Woori Securities
	
	1,186
	
	543
	
	-
	
	1,729

	WFIS
	
	425
	
	-
	
	189,648
	
	190,073

	Woori F & I
	
	493
	
	-
	
	-
	
	493

	Woori CA Asset Management
	
	100
	
	-
	
	-
	
	100

	WITM
	
	257
	
	-
	
	-
	
	257

	WFH 2nd SPC 
	
	181
	
	-
	
	-
	
	181

	WFH 3rd SPC
	
	112
	
	-
	
	-
	
	112

	
	
	￦
52,212
	
	￦
4,182
	
	￦
239,952
	
	￦
296,346


25. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

(1) Acceptances and guarantees as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 consisted of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions):
	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Confirmed acceptances and guarantees
	
	
	
	

	Local currency
	
	
	
	

	Bond issuance
	
	￦
92,918
	
	￦
72,273

	Guarantees for loans
	
	78,413
	
	93,202

	Guarantees for bills
	
	18,886
	
	19,121

	Other
	
	319,724
	
	284,945

	
	
	
509,941
	
	
469,541

	Foreign currencies
	
	
	
	

	Acceptances
	
	
333,181
	
	
416,002

	Letter of guarantee
	
	66,546
	
	69,225

	Credit derivatives sold
	
	83,504
	
	62,416

	Other
	
	372,328
	
	775,201

	
	
	
855,559
	
	
1,322,844

	
	
	￦
1,365,500
	
	￦
1,792,385

	Unconfirmed acceptance and guarantees
	
	
	
	

	Customer’s liability on letters of credit
	
	
	
	

	Local letters of credit in foreign currencies
	
	￦
586,609
	
	￦
695,034

	Local letters of credit in Won
	
	256,891
	
	203,326

	Import letters of credit
	
	1,891,082
	
	2,046,145

	Other
	
	27,259
	
	150,496

	
	
	￦
2,761,841
	
	￦
3,095,001

	Commitments
	
	
	
	

	Commitments on loans in Won
	
	￦
1,099,923
	
	￦
929,932

	Commitments on loans in foreign currencies
	
	145,121
	
	24,516

	Commitments on purchase of securities
	
	-
	
	59,890

	
	
	￦
1,245,044
	
	￦
1,014,338

	Bills endorsed
	
	
	
	

	Bills endorsed with recourse
	
	￦
16,373
	
	￦
15,554


(2) The Bank is a defendant in 211 lawsuits claiming damages of ￦1,057 billion and a plaintiff in 2,578 lawsuits pleading damages of 461 billion as of December 31, 2004. The Bank does not anticipate the ultimate outcome of these lawsuits will have a significant effect on the financial condition or operations of the Bank.

The major pending cases concerning the Bank in the courts were as follows (Unit: Korean won in billions):
	Plaintiff
	
	Damages claimed
	
	Details of lawsuit

	Stonington Partners, Inc. and other
	
	￦
512
	
	Aiding & assisting L&H Korea in inflating its revenue through factoring transaction. New York Federal Court has dismissed the lawsuit on the ground that it lacked jurisdiction over the case. However, the plaintiff might file the appeal

	Baker and other
	
	230
	
	Aiding & assisting L&H Korea in inflating its revenue through factoring transaction.

	Filler and other
	
	177
	
	Aiding & assisting L&H Korea in inflating its revenue through factoring transaction.

	Ilsung Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd.
	
	30
	
	Illegal reduction of capital of Hanil Bank

	Ssangyong Corporation
	
	16
	
	Import & export related document forgery

	Kyobo Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
	
	10
	
	Loss of specified monetary trust due to purchase of Saehan CP

	Daewoo Motors
	
	9
	
	Paid amount of export bill while Daewoo Motors has dishonored the notes

	LG Insurance Co., Ltd.
	
	7
	
	Interest guaranteed contract of specified money trust


(3) As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, details of other allowance in other liabilities were as follows (Unit: Korean won in billions):

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Woori Members (cardholders)’ unused point rewards and other
	
	￦
27
	
	￦
2

	Lawsuits
	
	26
	
	10

	Loans sold (*)
	
	16
	
	111

	Unused credit line of cash advance
	
	22
	
	-

	Commitment to invest in LG Card
	
	10
	
	12

	Other
	
	1
	
	-

	
	
	￦
102
	
	￦
135


(*)
Non-performing loans sold by the Bank to KAMCO with payment guarantees by the Bank on principal and interest of the loans or with repurchase obligation by the Bank. 

26. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS


As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, outstanding contract amount, gain or loss on valuation of derivative instruments in the statements of income (“I/S”), and assets, liabilities and capital adjustment in the balance sheets (“B/S”) were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):
	(2004)
	
	Outstanding contract amount
	
	Gain (loss) 

on valuation (I/S)
	
	Gain (loss) on valuation (B/S)
	
	Fair value (B/S)

	Type
	
	Trading
	
	Hedging
	
	Trading
	
	Hedging
	
	Capital adjustments
	
	Asset
	
	Liability

	(Currency derivatives)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Currency forwards
	
	￦
21,347,930
	
	￦
69,007
	
	￦
735,937
	
	￦
119
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
741,339
	
	￦
917,390

	
	
	
	
	
	
	(915,628)
	
	(22)
	
	-
	
	
	
	

	Currency swaps
	
	6,213,526
	
	8,454
	
	498,793
	
	390
	
	-
	
	484,227
	
	341,827

	
	
	
	
	
	
	(349,421)
	
	-
	
	-
	
	
	
	

	Currency futures
	
	114,713
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-

	Currency options purchased
	
	586,836
	
	-
	
	3,209
	
	-
	
	-
	
	12,457
	
	-

	
	
	
	
	
	
	(12,483)
	
	-
	
	-
	
	
	
	

	Currency options sold
	
	634,351
	
	-
	
	8,059
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	18,383

	
	
	
	
	
	
	(2,906)
	
	-
	
	-
	
	
	
	

	(Interest derivatives)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Interest rate forwards
	
	1,059,457
	
	-
	
	348
	
	-
	
	-
	
	348
	
	287

	
	
	
	
	
	
	(287)
	
	-
	
	-
	
	
	
	

	Interest rate swaps
	
	9,749,064
	
	3,294,921
	
	130,069
	
	8,105
	
	-
	
	158,090
	
	154,776

	
	
	
	
	
	
	(122,031)
	
	(116,016)
	
	(746)
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	-
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Interest rate futures
	
	453,120
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-

	 Interest rate options purchased
	
	22,843
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	130
	
	-

	
	
	
	
	  
	
	(86)
	
	-
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Interest rate  options sold
	
	22,843
	
	-
	
	10
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	130

	
	
	
	
	
	
	(130)
	
	-
	
	
	
	
	
	

	(Equity derivatives)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Equity futures
	
	166,955
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-

	Equity options purchased
	
	146,768
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	7,335
	
	-

	
	
	
	
	
	
	(394)
	
	-
	
	-
	
	
	
	

	Equity options sold
	
	1,503,790
	
	-
	
	9,477
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	204,876

	
	
	
	
	
	
	(22,608)
	
	-
	
	-
	
	
	
	

	
	
	￦
42,022,196
	
	￦
3,372,382
	
	￦
1,385,902
	
	￦
8,614
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
1,403,926
	
	￦
1,637,669

	
	
	
	
	
	
	￦
(1,425,974)
	
	￦
(116,038)
	
	￦
(746)
	
	
	
	


	(2003)
	
	Outstanding contract amount
	
	Gain (loss) 

on valuation (I/S)
	
	Fair value (B/S)

	Type
	
	Trading
	
	Hedging
	
	Trading
	
	Hedging
	
	Asset
	
	Liability

	(Currency derivatives)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Currency forwards
	
	￦
13,348,712
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
94,276
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
94,275
	
	￦
90,761

	
	
	
	
	
	
	(90,921)
	
	-
	
	
	
	

	Currency swaps
	
	4,879,380
	
	15,116
	
	108,022
	
	-
	
	158,873
	
	168,909

	
	
	
	
	
	
	(103,287)
	
	(1,258)
	
	
	
	

	Currency futures
	
	49,888
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-

	Currency options purchased
	
	148,527
	
	-
	
	702
	
	-
	
	3,362
	
	-

	
	
	
	
	
	
	(56)
	
	-
	
	
	
	

	Currency options sold
	
	123,373
	
	-
	
	63
	
	-
	
	-
	
	3,752

	
	
	
	
	
	
	(726)
	
	-
	
	
	
	

	(Interest derivatives)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Interest rate forwards
	
	50,000
	
	-
	
	1,773
	
	-
	
	213
	
	1,827

	Interest rate swaps
	
	4,989,240
	
	2,752,134
	
	60,755
	
	61,375
	
	261,643
	
	159,556

	
	
	
	
	
	
	(67,449)
	
	(58,387)
	
	
	
	

	Interest rate futures
	
	268,363
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-

	(Equity derivatives)
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Equity futures
	
	8,344
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-

	Equity options purchased
	
	77,133
	
	-
	
	82
	
	-
	
	6,570
	
	-

	
	
	
	
	
	
	(290)
	
	-
	
	
	
	

	Equity options sold
	
	187,960
	
	-
	
	462
	
	-
	
	-
	
	9,158

	
	
	
	
	
	
	(27)
	
	-
	
	
	
	

	
	
	￦
24,130,920
	
	￦
2,767,250
	
	￦
266,135
	
	￦
61,375
	
	￦
524,936
	
	￦
433,963

	
	
	
	
	
	
	￦
(262,756)
	
	￦
(59,645)
	
	
	
	


The Bank uses various derivative instruments for its trading activities, including interest rate and foreign exchange swaps, futures, forwards and options, to manage the interest rate characteristics of certain assets or liabilities and to economically hedge against the effects of fluctuations in interest rates or foreign exchange rates.
In addition, the Bank had derivative instruments accounted for as cash flow hedges and fair value hedges. For the cash flow hedge of variable-rate liabilities, the Bank made an interest rate swap contract with Kookmin Bank. As a result, as of December 31, 2004, a loss valuation of ￦746 million is recorded as a component of capital adjustments. Hedged items, to which fair value hedge accounting was applied, consisted of securities, loans and debentures issued and hedging derivative instruments such as currency swaps and interest rate swaps, were used to cover exposures to changes in fair value of hedged items resulting from currency or interest rate changes. Resulting from valuation of hedged items under fair value hedge, in 2004, a gain on valuation of ￦4,279 million and a loss on valuation of ￦227 million for loans, a gain on valuation of ￦20,785 million and a loss on valuation of ￦11,705 million for securities, a gain on valuation of ￦93,640 million and a loss on valuation of ￦2,309 million for debentures issued were reflected in current operations.

27. 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND STOCK OPTION

(1)
Employee benefit expenses in 2004 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	2004

	Employee welfare benefit funds
	
	￦
31,929

	National Pension contributions
	
	
22,655

	Recreation
	
	
22,573

	National health insurance premium
	
	
18,439

	Transportation expenses
	
	
16,828

	Unemployment insurance premium
	
	
7,667

	Condolence
	
	
3,390

	Medical examination
	
	
3,034

	Workers accident compensation insurance
	
	
1,708

	Other
	
	
9,075

	
	
	￦
137,298


Legal fringe benefits included national health insurance premium, national pension contributions, unemployment insurance premium and industry casualty insurance premium.

(2)
Stock option

On December 4, 2002, WFH granted stock options to 18 directors and audit committee members including the President and the Chief Executive Officer, and the Deputy President and the Chief Executive Officer of the Bank the right to purchase 500,000 shares of WFH’s common stock at ￦6,800 exercise price per share.  The stock options are exercisable during a three-year period beginning after three years from grant date. The Bank recorded stock option cost using the fair value approach considering decrease due to retirement (1 director, 45,000 shares) and assumption from Woori Card (6 director, 85,000 shares) and accounts payable as of December 31, 2004 are as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions): 

	Recorded period
	
	Amount

	2002
	
	￦
51

	2003
	
	
608

	2004
	
	
527

	
	
	￦
1,186


The Bank recorded ￦519 million (net of ￦8 million assumed from Woori Card) in the operating expenses with ￦555 million in accounts payable to WFH.

28. 
EXPERT TRAINING EXPENSES FOR EMPLOYEES

In 2004 and 2003, the Bank paid ￦12,693 million and ￦11,555 million for expert training of its employees to local and foreign training institutes.

29. EXPOSURES TO LG CARD AND SK NETWORKS 

(1)
Credits to LG Card and its related special purpose companies (together “LG Card”)

As of December 31, 2004, the amount owed by LG Card to the Bank totaled ￦145 billion in loans and in relation to this, the Bank provided ￦28 billion in allowances for possible loan losses.  In addition, as of December 31, 2004, the Bank has ￦211 billion in equity securities and ￦77 billion in debt securities, beneficiary certificates and asset-backed securities backed by credit card receivables of LG Card that had been securitized, all of which are classified as available-for-sale, and recognized ￦14 billion of cumulative impairment loss on such available-for-sale securities.  As of December 31, 2004, the Bank has agreed to extend maturities on commercial papers of ￦70 billion issued by LG Card in the Bank’s non-performance-based trust accounts, and the Bank has adjusted the trust management fee income reflecting the related estimated losses of ￦15 billion in 2004.

In 2004, the Bank converted ￦209 billion of loans, ￦76 billion of commercial paper in trust account and ￦68 billion of debt securities into equity securities. Also, the commercial paper of ￦14 billion in non-performance-based trust account and the corporate bond of ￦10 billion were determined to be converted into equity securities according to the creditor committee’s decision on January 3, 2005.
(2)
Credits to SK Networks

As of December 31, 2004, the amount owed by SK Networks to the Bank was ￦133 billion in loans and acceptances and guarantees outstanding, and the Bank provided ￦24 billion of allowances for possible loan losses for their credits. As of such date, the Bank also owned ￦74 billion of available-for-sale equity securities.

Depending on the result of restructuring process on LG Card and SK Networks, actual losses from credits to LG Card and SK Networks may differ materially from management’s current assessment.
30. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Material transactions not involving cash inflows and outflows in 2004 and 2003 are as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	
	
	2004
	
	2003

	Write-offs of loans
	
	￦
925,484
	
	￦
1,262,818

	Converted to equity securities from loans in local currencies
	
	212,346
	
	121,952

	Increase in capital adjustments due to the valuation of available-for-sale securities
	
	446,718
	
	303,879

	Increase (Decrease) in capital surplus due to merger
	
	(191,706)
	
	138,682

	Increase in assets due to merger
	
	2,030,413
	
	1,519,951

	Increase in liabilities due to merger
	
	1,896,685
	
	1,275,516

	Decrease in equity securities accounted for using the equity method
	
	1,677
	
	235


31. TRUST ACCOUNTS

(1) Classification of trust accounts

The Bank manages nineteen monetary trust and three property trusts. General Unspecified Monetary Trusts, Installment Savings Trust (Guaranteed) and Development Trust guarantee a fixed rate of return on, and the repayment of, principal. Old-age pension Trusts, New Old-age Pension Trust, Personal Pension Trusts, New Personal Pension Trusts and Retirement Trusts guarantee the repayment of principal. Household monetary Trusts, Corporation Monetary Trusts and Installment Savings Trust (Performance) guarantee the repayment of principal only to customers who executed trust contracts prior to April 30, 1996.
Pursuant to the related regulations, new trust contracts of the types “General Unspecified Monetary Trusts” and “Installment Savings Trusts (Guaranteed)” have not been allowed since January 1, 1996 and new trust contracts of the type “Development Trusts” have not been allowed since January 1, 1999.  With respect to any unspecified monetary trusts wherein debentures are not marked to market, new contracts have not been allowed since July 1, 2002. Specified Monetary Trusts are individually managed and are performance-based trusts.

(2) 
As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, assets and liabilities of the trust accounts that guarantee a fixed rate of return on, and/or the repayment of, principal consisted of the following (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	(2004)
	
	Trust accounts guaranteeing a fixed rate of return on, and the repayment

of principal
	
	Trust accounts guaranteeing

the repayment

of principal
	
	Mixed trust

accounts (*)
	
	Performance-

based trust

accounts
	
	Total

	Cash and due from banks
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
39,638
	
	￦
39,638

	Loans
	
	12,440
	
	107,409
	
	7,259
	
	12,395
	
	139,503

	Call loans
	
	-
	
	-
	
	3,000
	
	97,000
	
	100,000

	Money receivables
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	6,027,502
	
	6,027,502

	Personal and real property
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	1,416,408
	
	1,416,408

	Securities
	
	123,811
	
	1,621,134
	
	180,844
	
	3,087,592
	
	5,013,381

	Other assets
	
	492
	
	28,696
	
	2,960
	
	99,448
	
	131,596

	Due from the bank accounts of the Bank
	
	49,684
	
	234,524
	
	6,272
	
	597,617
	
	888,097

	Allowance for possible credit losses
	
	(28,158)
	
	(574)
	
	(783)
	
	(3,119)
	
	(32,634)

	Total assets
	
	￦
158,269
	
	￦
1,991,189
	
	￦
199,552
	
	￦
11,374,481
	
	￦
13,723,491

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Monetary trusts
	
	￦
12,520
	
	￦
1,934,381
	
	￦
195,084
	
	￦
3,270,390
	
	￦
5,412,375

	Property in trusts
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	7,939,689
	
	7,939,689

	Other liabilities
	
	145,331
	
	31,754
	
	2,792
	
	164,402
	
	344,279

	Special reserve
	
	418
	
	25,054
	
	1,676
	
	-
	
	27,148

	Total liabilities
	
	￦
158,269
	
	￦
1,991,189
	
	￦
199,552
	
	￦
11,374,481
	
	￦
13,723,491


	(2003)
	
	Trust accounts guaranteeing a fixed rate of return on, and the repayment

of principal
	
	Trust accounts guaranteeing

the repayment

of principal
	
	Mixed trust

accounts (*)
	
	Performance-

based trust

accounts
	
	Total

	Cash and due from banks
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
-
	
	￦
15,806
	
	￦
15,806

	Loans
	
	13,649
	
	95,962
	
	10,470
	
	91,192
	
	211,273

	Money receivables
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	8,427,326
	
	8,427,326

	Personal and real property
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	742,043
	
	742,043

	Securities
	
	186,126
	
	1,350,886
	
	227,237
	
	3,834,108
	
	5,598,357

	Other assets
	
	852
	
	30,441
	
	3,970
	
	1,010,399
	
	1,045,662

	Due from the bank accounts of the Bank
	
	170,845
	
	151,795
	
	26,177
	
	1,539,525
	
	1,888,342

	Allowance for possible credit losses
	
	(70,978)
	
	(537)
	
	(1,438)
	
	(2,136)
	
	(75,089)

	Total assets
	
	￦
300,494
	
	￦
1,628,547
	
	￦
266,416
	
	￦
15,658,263
	
	￦
17,853,720

	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Monetary trusts
	
	￦
12,438
	
	￦
1,574,099
	
	￦
260,726
	
	￦
4,277,100
	
	￦
6,124,363

	Property in trusts
	
	-
	
	-
	
	-
	
	11,186,395
	
	11,186,395

	Other liabilities
	
	287,541
	
	33,975
	
	3,781
	
	194,768
	
	520,065

	Special reserve
	
	515
	
	20,473
	
	1,909
	
	-
	
	22,897

	Total liabilities
	
	￦
300,494
	
	￦
1,628,547
	
	￦
266,416
	
	￦
15,658,263
	
	￦
17,853,720


(*) 
Mixed trust accounts consisted of trusts that guarantee the repayment of principal and trusts that do not guarantee the repayment of principal. 

32. MANAGEMENT IMPROVEMENT PLAN

(1)
Agreement on the implementation of the management improvement plan with KDIC

On December 30, 2000, the Bank and KDIC entered into an agreement for the implementation of a management improvement plan for the Bank. Pursuant to the agreement, the Bank received ￦2,764 billion from KDIC as investment in the Bank’s common stock on December 30, 2000 and the Bank was committed to receive ￦1,877 billion as a contribution from KDIC.  KDIC made such contribution to the Bank on September 30, 2001. Based on the agreement, the Bank is obligated to sell non-performing loans and fixed assets, close certain branches and subsidiaries, improve financial ratios including the capital adequacy ratio. If the Bank fails to implement the agreement, KDIC may order the Bank to increase or decrease its capital, pursue a merger, assign contracts such as loans and deposits, or close or sell a part of its business operations.

(2)
Agreement on the implementation of the business plan with the WFH

As agreed with KDIC, on July 12, 2001, the Bank and WFH entered into an agreement for the implementation of a business plan for the Bank.  Pursuant to the agreement, the Bank shall meet management goals provided by WFH, consult with WFH on material business decision before execution, prepare and implement a detailed business plan in conformity with the WFH’s business strategies.  If the Bank fails to implement the business plan, WFH may order the Bank to limit sales of the specific financial items, investments in fixed assets, promotion to new business, or new equity investment, close or merge its branch operations.

33. MERGER WITH WOORI CARD
On February 5, 2004, the Bank and Woori Card entered into a merger contract that was approved in the shareholder’s meeting on March 4, 2004. Pursuant to the merger contract, on March 31, 2004, all assets (￦2,142 billion) and all liabilities (￦2,009 billion) of Woori Card were transferred to and assumed by the Bank and the Bank issued 0.3581 new common stock per one common stock of Woori Card. The difference between the net assets transferred and the consideration paid was recorded in capital surplus (￦330 billion). As a result of this merger transaction, total number of common shares and total common stock balance of the Bank increased from 571 million shares to 636 million shares and from ￦2,853 billion to ￦3,180 billion, respectively. 

(1)
Woori Card details

Woori Card was established as Peace Bank of Korea on November 6, 1991 and was engaged in the commercial banking business under the Korean Banking Law and trust business under the Trust Business Law.  As of December 17, 2001, Woori Card changed its name from Peace Bank of Korea to Woori Credit Card Co., Ltd. and transferred the banking business (including trust business) to the Bank, converting its major business from banking services to credit card services on December 31, 2001 in accordance with the Credit Financing Business Law, and was engaged in credit card business, factoring, customer financing and other related services. In addition, Woori Card acquired the credit card accounts of Woori Bank and Kwangju Bank in January 2002 and February 2003, respectively. On March 29, 2004, Woori Card transferred back Kwangju Bank’s credit card accounts to Kwangju Bank and has 4,979 thousand credit card members and 238 thousand member shops as of December 31, 2004.

(2)
The condensed non-consolidated balance sheets of the Bank and Woori Card as of December 31, 2003 and March 31, 2004 are as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	(December 31, 2003)
	
	Woori Bank
	
	Woori Card

	Cash and due from banks
	
	￦
4,833,325
	
	￦
135,345

	Loans
	
	
71,198,169
	
	
1,429,744

	Securities
	
	
18,814,715
	
	
757,379

	Fixed assets
	
	
1,718,556
	
	
57,918

	Other assets
	
	
5,247,779
	
	
81,262

	Assets of merchant banking unit
	
	
1,497,166
	
	
-

	Total assets
	
	￦
103,309,710
	
	￦
2,461,648

	
	
	
	
	

	Deposits
	
	￦
70,811,000
	
	￦
443

	Borrowings
	
	
9,632,495
	
	
583,005

	Debentures
	
	
7,780,156
	
	
1,942,765

	Other liabilities
	
	
8,346,765
	
	
133,486

	Liabilities of merchant banking unit
	
	
1,082,545
	
	
-

	Total liabilities
	
	
97,652,961
	
	
2,659,699

	Common stock
	
	
2,852,838
	
	
113,000

	Capital surplus
	
	
654,708
	
	
1,900,000

	Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)
	
	
1,798,918
	
	
(1,653,136)

	Capital adjustments
	
	
350,285
	
	
(557,915)

	Total shareholder’s equity
	
	
5,656,749
	
	
(198,051)

	Total liabilities and shareholder’s equity
	
	￦
103,309,710
	
	￦
2,461,648


	(March 31, 2004)
	
	Woori Bank
	
	Woori Card

	Cash and due from banks
	
	￦
4,476,498
	
	￦
124,045

	Loans
	
	
72,241,479
	
	
941,379

	Securities
	
	
20,191,178
	
	
961,851

	Fixed assets
	
	
1,747,360
	
	
6,606

	Other assets
	
	
5,143,338
	
	
108,369

	Assets of merchant banking unit
	
	
1,167,407
	
	
-

	Total assets
	
	￦
104,967,260
	
	￦
2,142,250

	
	
	
	
	

	Deposits
	
	￦
71,345,169
	
	￦
-

	Borrowings
	
	
9,759,398
	
	
450,443

	Debentures
	
	
8,309,577
	
	
1,432,980

	Other liabilities
	
	
7,824,225
	
	
125,100

	Liabilities of merchant banking unit
	
	
1,472,588
	
	
-

	Total liabilities
	
	
98,710,957
	
	
2,008,523

	Common stock
	
	
2,852,838
	
	
913,000

	Capital surplus
	
	
654,708
	
	
246,863

	Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)
	
	
1,820,904
	

	
(465,879)

	Capital adjustments
	
	
927,853
	
	
(560,257)

	Total shareholder’s equity
	
	
6,256,303
	
	
133,727

	Total liabilities and shareholder’s equity
	
	￦
104,967,260
	
	￦
2,142,250


(3)
The condensed non-consolidated statements of income of the Bank and Woori Card are as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions):

	(Year ended December 31, 2003)
	
	Woori Bank
	
	Woori Card

	Operating income
	
	￦
7,621,300
	
	￦
983,899

	Operating expenses
	
	
(6,341,472)
	
	
(2,178,064)

	Operating income (loss)
	
	
1,279,828
	
	
(1,194,165)

	Non-operating income
	
	
485,822
	
	
11,290

	Non-operating expenses
	
	
(335,988)
	
	
(16,736)

	Ordinary income (loss)
	
	
1,429,662
	
	
(1,199,611)

	Income tax expense
	
	
(97,477)
	
	
(120,960)

	Net income (loss)
	
	￦
1,332,185
	
	￦
(1,320,571)


	(Three-month period ended March 31, 2004)
	
	Woori Bank
	
	Woori Card

	Operating income
	
	￦
2,561,423
	
	￦
220,637

	Operating expenses
	
	
(2,302,431)
	
	
(609,694)

	Operating income (loss)
	
	
258,992
	
	
(389,057)

	Non-operating income
	
	
37,437
	
	
1,038

	Non-operating expenses
	
	
(26,366)
	
	
(77,860)

	Ordinary income (loss)
	
	
270,063
	
	
(465,879)

	Income tax expense
	
	
(6,271)
	
	
    -

	Net income (loss)
	
	￦
263,792
	
	￦
(465,879)


34. THE MAJOR INDICATORS OF THE 4TH QUARTER

Major indicators for management performance for the 4th quarter period in 2004 and 2003 were as follows (Unit: Korean won in millions, except for income per share):

	
	
	4th quarter - 2004
	
	4th quarter - 2003

	
	
	(unaudited)
	
	(unaudited)

	Operating income
	
	￦
4,338,563
	
	￦
2,010,499

	Operating expenses
	
	
(3,636,468)
	
	
(1,694,414)

	Operating income
	
	
702,095
	
	
316,085

	Ordinary income
	
	
634,136
	
	
159,698

	Net income
	
	￦
1,145,656
	
	￦
173,507

	Net income per share
	
	￦
1,801
	
	￦
304


�Total not tally bec. Minority interest was missed out.


/Inserted Minority Interest/JTJ


�Not tally in (1)


/Corrected (1) and related figures/JTJ


�Why not tally in Note 18


/Diff.141(=7,406-7,265) is for investment in Woo Bang Housing Co., Ltd. We suggested the Bank to reclassify Woo Bang as AFS instead of equity method security, but the Bank didn’t accepted. The Bank is going to adjust this in year 2005. We passed this AJE and RJE as immaterial and our team does not want to disclose this item in the footnotes./JTJ


�Not tally with BS


/Diff. 42,141(87,005-44,863) is for investment in Woo Bang Housing Co., Ltd. (please see memo 3) /JTJ


�Where is for 2004?


/As Byucksan was sold during 2004, there’s nothing to disclose as of Dec.31 2004./JTJ 





